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With the exception of Mary E. Riddle's article about Odenville
and Betty Hodges' research paper about Ashville, these histories
seem to have been a 1953 project of the St. Clair County Schools.

Joe Whitten indexed the articles by surnames, places and
organizations. Some activities such as candle making and syrup
making were indexed as well.
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ST. CLAIR COUMTY

At the sccond session of the first General Assembly of the Alabama Territory
held at St. Stepnens in Washington County, and on the 20th day of lNovember, 1818,
and in the L3rd year of american Incependence, the county of St. Clair was created.
i porticn of northern Shelby County wes used for the purpose and the act was approved
by Governor Bibb. Host of the attention of this assembly was given to preparation
of the territory for statchood, but time was found to create this and cne other
county, namely Autauga.

TOPOGRAPHY
The county is located toward the northeastern part of the state, the castern

boundary being some L0 milcs from the Gcorgia line, thc northern boundary 70 miles

' ;rom thc Tcnncssee llne, and the center of the county about 4O milecs from the c1ty

of Blrmlnghim.

In 1820 by an act of the legislaturc @ part of St. Clair was added to Jefferson
aﬁd at infcrvals following this datc the lines have been changed. As example: An
act epproved Dee, 17, 1558 reads, "Be it cnacted by the General Assembly of silabama
thqt the boundary line between the countics of Ftowah and St. Clair be changed so as
tovincludc Thomas M. Springficld as a citizen of St. Clair.! (it present writing
there is a proposzl on foot to change the linc between Jefferson and St. Clair to
include aii fdmilicé living within threec miles of Leeds High School as citizens of
Jéffersoh County.)» The bouhdary lineé are at prosent very irregular, the east and
southcast llnes belng formed by the course of the Coosa River while part of the north-
west boundary is formod by the irregular summit of Blount Mountain, which _separates
St..Clair from Blount,

The shape of the county is roughly rectangular, the long dimension running
northeast and southwest, and it is about 30 miles wide and L2 miles long.
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It contnins 6UE square milec. The county has a very rugged surfac ¢, lying in the
so-called hard rock division which is an extension of the .ppalachian Mountains.
There arc a number of narrow ridges and intervening valleys throughout the county.
B:ckSonc Mountain is continuous, dividing the county into two divisions cach with
different characteristics of topography. Chandlcer Mountain in the northwest part of
the county has several sgquare miles of level top arca which is developed into gcod
farming region. The clevation of the entire -county ranges from L50 to 1,600 fect.
(Chandler Mt, isil,éoO £t.)

Therc are approximetely 7 squarc miles of woter in St. Clair. Drainage is cx-
ccllent, being to the Coosa and Cahaba Rivers. There arc meny sm2ll strcams, some

of which flow swiftly, developing power in a small wiy by which grist mills, saw mills,

ctc. were once operated. There are o great many springs of unusual size throughout

“the County;“”Half&dozcn“of‘thcsc'are“estimntod to flow as much as 750,000 gallons

per day. At St Clu-r Sprlngs and Cook Springs therc is water contzlnlng pot ssium,

C)

sodium, magncsium, and many other propertics, 3
There arc 23 distinctive types of soil in the county and agriculture is the

most important indus ry. Portions of two coal ficlds occur within its boundories.

They arc the Cahaba and tho Coosa ficlds. The Cahaba ficld in the cxtreme southwest

cornery, is no longer actively mined at icmar and Margarct. These mines were operated

by the ilabama Fucl and Iron Company, of which the latc Charles F. DeBardclecben is

ovmer. In tho Lilladcga Watchtower of Scptember 1880 this ncws item is noted; ™ir.

: hcnry F DeBardclebcn has invested $8,000 in the Cahoba Coal ficld of St. Clair County.

Henry F. was thQ fathcr of Chorles F. DeBardeleben. The Cog§n Ficld is nlmost cntirc-
lyiabanddned, dlfhﬁugh Coal City was at onc time a #ory active wining community.

From the Ashville sicgis of 4pril 8, 1879 comes this itcm: "Capt. Jas. Elliott of
Rome, Gal was in iishville on Monday attending salc of Daughdrill lands in this county
riv. Z1liott speaks hopefully of the ultimate opening of Coosa River and says that cc..
can be shipped frem Broken irrow (Coal City) mines of St. Clair cheaper than frem

Jadsden.”
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There are small depositas of iron, bauxite and other minerals in the county.

ABORIGINAL HISTORY

The larger part of St. Clair is situated within what was oncc the domains of
the Creck Indians. The Cherokec boundary line as recognized by the Cherokce treaty
of Scptember 1, 1816 passcd northwesternly through the northern part of the county.,
Therefore the Indian population-when white men first inhabitated the place-was large-
ly Creck with some intermingled Cherokces.

On Big Canoc Creck there was a Creck village knowm as Cataula. This villoge was
situated on the present site of the town of ishville: Littifutchce was also a Creck

village and was about 18 miles from Catmula on thc Coosa Rlvcr. On the mornlng of

WhOctober 29, 1813, durlng thc Creek Wir, Col Dycr commandlng a dctachment of Tcnncssee

. troops, surprised and burned Liffifutchec. He roturned to General Jackson's army

with 29 prisoners, éonsisting of men, women and children and a large supply of corn
and cattle. It was at this time that General Jackson built Fort Strother at Ten
Islands near Greensport,ggs a basce of operations against the Crecks. it the treaty
of Fort Jackson, iugust 9, 181k, all remaining Crecks in the county were moved over
and scttled on the cast side of the Coosa River, as all the county on the west side
wns cmbraced in the treaty.

YAlongithe Coo#a'River from a point above Ten Islands the cntire river boundary
of the county is ddtted with evidences of aboriginal occupancy. d{long the northwest
scction of the county the igdications arc quite extensive. O0Id rccords show that
many white séttlcrs'purchasca lands from Indians. Such names as John Chattooga,
Dragging Canoe, and others appear in these old deeds. (Crying Snake, Qualecuo)
Minutcs‘of County Court 1829 show that Moulder Ragsdale was appointed by the court *
to take census of the Indians in the part of the nation belonging to St. Clair County.

Rasults of this census were not found.
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NAMED

‘St. Clair‘County was named for General arthur St. Clair. He was born in Thurso,
Scotland in 173k. After coming to fmerica he fought in the British ‘rmy at Louis-
burg and Quebec. On the outbreak of the Revolutionary War, he tcok the Colonial side.
after the war he served on various legislative bodies. St. Clair died in 1818, the

yecar St, Clair County was created.

ELECTION
The County's first voting places were at the homes of Jocl Chandler and William
Guthrecy in 1819. John H., Garrctt clected Judge of County Court, and Jesse C. Roberts,

Clerk of Circuit Court.

COURT

The first court was hcld at Alexandcr Brown's home on the 7th Gay of Deccmber
1818. It is interesting to notc that the first casc to be dockcted on the "Minutes
of Circuit Court-St. Clair County 1818-1821" was the case of Jocl Chandlef vs.
Alexander Brown. It wagta damage suit, Chandler claiming that Brown had damaged
his property while trespassing. The amount sucd for was £10,000. At thc:trail
Chandler begged to withdraw the complaint and the court dismissed casc on paymcnt
of court cost by the defendant. Brown readily payed cost, samec beirg $13.56. It is
i précigcly in this manner that S0 many cases arc cleared from the civil dockets of
bﬁfvéaﬁfts tod;}; Thc Hon. Henry Y. VWcbb was the presiding Judge at this court,

: Jcssé . RobcrtéiWnéjcourt clerk, and David Conner's name was signed as Sheriff.
Pdavid Conner was St. Clair County's first Senator, scrving an honor of which any man
and his descendants may be proud. .ththcr or not the samc man scrved as Sheriff of

3t. Clair County the writer was unable to determine.
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The Sheriff could have been David Conner Jr.

The site of ilexaender Brown's, where the above described court was held, is
i, and £ miles from the prescnt town of ashville anﬂ is now 2 large pasturc. It is
on U, S. Highway No. 11 and is still spoken of as "01ld Towm," now thc property of
W, P, Cobb.

The carliest record to be found of a County Court is "™Iinutcs of Orphans and
Commissioners Court-St. Clair County 1827-1836.% John H. Garrctt was the Judge of
this Court, Jessc C. Roberts, Clerk, and John HMassey was Sheriff, The first business
of the Court was the naming.of road overscers and captains. Thirty-cight overscers
and 2 captain for each beat were named. Throughout this book records of the follow-

ing naturc are found: "Ordcred by the Court that Samuel Truss, George Shortwcll and

Jokn Greenwcod be appointed Commissioncrs to mark out and review a road from 4dshville

to Thomas C. Bradford's placc, to pasé up the creck byLOld Town ~nd John Hill's and
make rcport at the next County Court. Order issued Juiy 31, 1832." This route is
the same followed by the U. S. Highway No. 11 today. foday there are good chert
rocads throughout the coxgpty, in addition to U. S. Highway No. 11 running from Birm-
ingham to Gadsden and the Bankhecad Highway runaing from Birmingham to inniston. The
Southern Railway and the Seaboard .udirlinc have approximﬁtcly 76 miles of mail linc in
the county.

SE.L

‘;kan fﬁéeéjrd cf February 1829 by an order of the Court the impression for a
cqunﬁy seal was adspted,f;hd %10.00 was paid to William C. Glements for making thé
In 1821, John 4sh, John Massey, John Cunningham, Jocl Chandler, and George Short-
well ﬁcrcappointed by the court to superintend the crection of a court house and joil. -
Logﬁuildings were put up at .ishville. When these buildings werce complcted, the seat

of Justice.was incorporated-by and act of the legislaturc at Ashville, the year 1RZZ.
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Ashville was at onc time an Indian Village. John Ash was the first white man to
settle thkere, cstablishingAhis plantation there in 1818. Mr. iish was a Scnator in
Alabama's legislature in 1825-27 and again 1832-3k, and 18LL-L5, and the town,
4shville, was named in his honor. He held many important town offices and was one
of St. Clair County's lcading citizens until his death in 1873.

In 18LL the log building was uscd for o ccurt house was Judged to be inadequate
ant it was ordered by thc court that a ncw brick building be erccted. Littleton
Yarbrough was commissioncd to creet this brick building. The following is copicd
from his ledger, now in the pessession of his granddaughter, Miss Elizabeth Yarbrough.

"March 25th., 18LS.

I built a court house in ishville whigh‘hés 155,6L0 brick which

I am to payWCambcii‘Jéfféf;Qn tﬁcmd;iiafév&'SO#Wpéfﬂtﬁdﬁéiﬂ&;”‘W

Scttled in full. June i, 18L5."

Also an entry which reads:

"o commenced laying brick én the court housc the 23rd of

October lth.ég /dso a statement that they laid brick for 3k cays.
Another ontry, samc ledger:
o "Mr. Stanley worked for chfcrson Harch 17 - 18 - 21 - 22 -~ 1845
plastcring court house for which he reccived £19.00. Scttled
in full.

L. Yarbrough."

This same building is in usc today. It has been many times remodeled and rcnovated,

-

with rooms added from timc'to time.

CHURCHES
Lt present therc are five Protostant denominations represented by the churchqs
of St. Clair County. Thcy arc the Baptist, Methndist, Presbyterian, Episcopal and
Thurch of Christ. The Baptist lcad in membership, having about onc thowkond more

members than the Mcthodist.
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The records of the begimning of theﬁe churches arc very brief. The Beptist,
Methodist, and Epiécopal secem to have been the first. Onc of the carlier Baptist
ministers in the county was Jessic A. Collins. Mr. Collins was pastor of the Baptist
Church at ishville in 1830. While he was pastor about 18L5 the first building, a
very small structure situated on Cemetery Hill just cast of ishville, was torn awa&
and the building which was used until 1930 was erected there. Just when this first
church was built is unknown, but there are grave stones in the ccmetery bearing the
date 1822. The second church house was built by Littleton Yarbrough, who built the
Courthouse. He cut the hand planed lumber, made the pegs and numbered cach peg and
peg hole with Roman Numerals at his shop on his own premises. He then houled the
material to Cemetery Hill and forthwith erected the church. It was in this church
that Mr. Collins preached for about LO yecars.. Vhen this church was torn down in 1930,

the material was ﬁscd'tquuild”quastorium - now in usc.

Mr. Collins c<id much towardffostering the Baptist faith in St. Clair County.
-In 1853 he established a church ét Coosa Valley, now Cropwell, and was pastor for a
number of ycars. In'ordcr to reach this church from his home in Ashville he traveled
horseback, the fishville-Broken-fArrow Road , across Backbone Mountain. At the summit
of the mountain the road passed uner a lorge overhanging rock and at that time there
was a bright yellow half moon on this rock which had been painted there by the Indians.

(During certaih months the moon was worshipped by the Indians.) Those who traveled

7 this lonely road noticed that at the foot of the large rock and directly underneath

the'golden half-moon there was a neat stack of flat slate rocks. To their astonish-
ment this stéck of rocks sieadily‘grew. Someone spoke to Mr. Collins about it, asking
if‘hé had noticed‘fhe rocks as he passed that way on his trips to Coosa Valley. He
smilingly answered: '"Oh that is my Bethel, and thosc rocks are my altar. Each rock
represents a half hour spent in prayer, for it is there that I stop to rest my horsc
~:d talk with God." The story has been often repeated, for Mr. Collins was a beloveu
chcracter throughout the county, and although the golden half moon has long since fade

end the road has becn abandoned, the altar is still there and the place is spoken as

Bethel,
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In the early scventics therc was an Episcopal Church located at ishville, but
its merbership became so small that it finally becamc unable to maintain a rector.
The members of St. John's Episcopal Church of Elyton, Llebama, purchased this build-
ing ond it was moved to Elyton on log wheel drown by mules. The cxact date of this
transaction can be sccured from an accound which wns nublished some fifteen years
age in the Birmingham News. This little church building was uscd as a place of
worship for the deaf mutcs of Birmingham until 1950, The members of St. John's used
it on certain occassions for the purposc of christenings =nd weddings. In 1950 it
was discovercd that the foundation of the old structure was badly damaged by termites,
thercfore 1t was torn away ond a new building crccted on the site, First Strcet and

‘Tuscaloosa Avcnue.’“ - e o
-The Methodist Church was orghnlzod in the county about-1620..-. In-IBSL Mr, Jlmoth -
Bycrs gave the Methodist the plot of ground and vhey, together with the Masonic Lodge,
crected the first Methodist Church building. The upper story was used by the Masons.
This building is still standing in ashville and is used by the Masons. Howcver, it

has been moved from the #riginal site, where the Mcthodist now stands.

SCEOOL3

When we rev1ew the hlstory of the schools of St. Clair County, we realize that

“we have indeed made great progress.~ The magorlty of the first settlers in St. Clair

;County came from an older Southern state and naturally brought with them the school
‘systen of that partlculaéﬂgﬁate. There were private schools in most communities con-
ducted 1ndependent of state funds. Hény éf the well-to-do planters erected small
buildings on their premesis which were used as schools. In most cases the teacher

was a poor relative -- often times a maiden aunt or cousin -- whom the family was °

obliged to support. In many cases the pastor of the local church was alse the teache:.ij

Littleton Yarbrough's ledger gave an account of his children attending a school taughi

by Jesse A. Collins in 18LkL.

RS
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The younger children went S5 days in the summer and the older ones 3 months in. the
winter. Professor Wasson taught an academy at Ashville prior to the War Between
the States, The poorer families had no schools.

In 1854, A. B, Meek submitted a bill to the legis)aiure providing for the esta-
5lishmeﬁt and maintenance of public schools in Alabama. The office of State Superin-
tendent of Schools was created and two school commissionsars were appointed for each
county. It was several years later that the office of County Superintendent of
Education was created. Very little was accomplished toward establishing publie
schools in Alabama before the war. Members of the well-to-do eclass who might have
done much toward promoting publie education were not greatly interested because they

were financially able tovemploy‘teqchers for their children.,

4i;“M”mWItias sometimewfollpwingwthe»darkwdqys~of*reccnstructibn"wﬁén”St;mCIdir with
the remaining counties of Alabama lay prone, stripped and apparently ruined, that
Alabama's wise Dr. J. L., M, Curry declared, "We are now too poor not to educatc our
children." To Dr. Curry we owe the revival of interest in public education.

It was in 1871 that*William P. Lovett was appointed Superintendent of Education
for St. Clair County. Mr. ‘Lovett camec to St. Clair from Ohio before the war. He
taught a private school at Springville for years. F. Dillon followed Mr. Lovett ac
Superintendent and his successor was a Mr. Newton. The dutics of these carly Super-
intendents were of a financial nature and the salary was $75.00 por annum, plus onc
per cent of all public disbursements.

In 1877 Judge Leroy F. Box of ishville became State Superintendent of Education.
It was during his term that the law requiring all teachers drawing publiec money to
hold a license to teach was first obeyed to the letter in St. Clair. To secure a
license a teacher was required to attend three meetings of a Teachers Institute and

"o vass an oral examinatior conducted by the superintcndent and board of examiners,
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In August of 1879 therc appearcd the following notice in the Southern fegis:
"Springville icademy--a high schcol for beys and girls--Jno. O,
Turner, Sr; Principal. The fifth scssion of this school will
begin Scptember fhe first, 1879. During the past two scssions
students have been in attendance from six countics in .labama.
~s high as scventy-five pupils have becn cnrolled in one session,

A full high school course is taught. Tuition--from £1.50 to $3.50
per month, board and lodging $8.00 per month. School books fur-
nished at publisher‘s prices. Locality healthful and desirable.

Church facilitiesvexcellént.vacstiﬁutéwofphdhsrtdkénmafﬁhdlf -

‘price. No charges for lost timc or for incidontal Cxponses.
- For full particulars apply for annual circular.

Jno. 0. Turner, Sr., Principal
Springville Ninth Grade

Mrs. Mattic Lou Crow, Tecacher

1953.
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%% community as it greu into a thriving little town with churches and schools and parents
N - (54 .
<

HISTORY OF STEEL®E

Tne racent 1ncorporatlon of Steele 1n nort“ St. ululr County merks a mllestone

,:

1r the hlstory of the llttle commnnlty, whose life stony dates back for over.a hundred

L4

ve ar S

If the Amerlcan way of 1¢fe,can be descrlbed in one word that word is "chanoe,"vt%lA

and thau word "change " also desérloes the way of llfe 1n bteele comnunlty.~ Thef'h;

Dtory of Steele is a story of progress - Progress - often slom, with many unexpected

set backs but ever making slow advancement toward a better way of life. R
Look back with me into the past and see the wilderness where the Indians roamed,

the sturdy piloneers as fhey came ~ as they cleared land and built homeg, the littlie

striving to glve their chlldreb the beSU. HMen ard women worklns that they and their

nelgnbors mlght have a more abundan* llfe - look back w1tn me to yesterday and see

- how it helped uo bring about a more glorious todpy.

In thﬂ mountaln—valley section of north east Alabama the forest grew. Thefé»

‘ was affluence of rainfall and sunshine. The winds whispered thropgh the stately

I8

e

il Lmae, o S e i e Aoy mate e o e el

b ,’“osh wute* flsh to the hungry warrlors, who were 1argely Creek w;th some 1ntcrm*ng;f

. cace below Eufaula.

pines on the mountain sigdes - The broadleaf trees shaded the little valleys from the f;"
surmer sun. Hany springs bubbled up and offered swecet water to the thirsty Redskins

whe dwelt in the land Game was pi“ntlful in thc woodland Han3 strehms offercd .

-

led Cherokces. f? 7; 2 . Cv‘ ;1“ -',{ff ' i? ? “‘;f, :“Qi?; ‘e

Fere our story beglns

: 4At.the'end of the Creek W;r the Crcck Indlans gavc up by the treaty of Fort

#;" T

chkson, August 9, 181h thelr lands south ;nd wcst of a llne drawn from Che*o<ce

Crosszng, near Greensport in St. Clalr County, dowq the east side of tre Coosa tc

,"“'om/

'vﬂtumpka thencc to the nouth of Summochlco Creek whlch emptles into the Chat*ab:u— o
3 LR _ = L PR

1. Al B. ﬁborc, "History of Alabama®
‘ B ' 11
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This gave the whites access to South St. Ciair County. _?he Cherokees elaimcd North .,
of tﬁis line and gave up their claim to such in 1816. Thus the whole of St. Clair
County became opcn to white settlers.

Many of the Tennessee and Georgla volunteers who ‘had come to Alabama with General
Jackson to fight the Indians like the country. When the war was over they returned
homes. Among these early settlers werc the Browms, Halls, Logans, Stephens, Jourdans,
Tramels, Smiths, Beasons, and Deermans. These familics settled in North St. Clair
Cecunty on 1and that is now served by Steele Route One. |

The Countryman, Slbert and Battles families settled in the flatwoods below Steele

in what was known as thc C.mD Slbert arca durlng World Whr II

- The Jourdan family, scttled at what is now the San Swindall home place on Steele
Route One, between 1830 and 1840. The Indians were still here. It is said the Indians -
would sneak around the Louse and if the whites had their backs turned, they would take
a dish of cooked foodrorﬁa'corn pone- and make a hasty retreat with it. Calvin Jourdan,
baby in the Jourdan family, was much loved by the Indians. Every chance they had they
would kidnap fhe baby and have much fun dancing with and entertaining him. The Darehtsj

on 1c_rn1ng of hls absence would go in scarch of him and upon flndlng him would res-

.. cue the baby only to have the same thlng happen again in a few days. When Calvin

grew to manhood he became a Hethodlst preacher in Florida.

The Bcason famlly was~ among the first settlers in this part of St. Clair County.

‘Captaln Edward Beason, born in North Cerollna in 1757 was a captain of Foot Soldiers

in Militia in the Revolutionary War.® He came from North Carolina and arrived in
St. Clair County in 181L. He brought his wife and slaves. He built a cabin in the
woods near the site of Ashville, Alabama. This cabin was on the Double Bridge Road
selwecen Steele and Ashville,

1. Ravolutiandfy Soldiers of Ala. Dept. of Archives, Bulletin 5, pp. 10.
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They lived among the Indians until they werz romcved. His scn Curtis Grubb Beason
was twelve years old at the time, Curtis cxpericaced thc harships and dcprlvntlons
of pionccr llfc but boeame a wealthy influential mcn in this part of the state. He
attendod school thlrtccn days in his lifc., He owned thousands of acres of land.
-Durlng the Civil Whr Federal Soldicrs burncd the deeds to this so since the deeds
were not recorded the land was lost to him after the war and he was comparatively
a poor mzm.1 He married Martha Clark. His wife and the wifc of David Sibert worc
half-sisters, His hgmc rlace was wherc the dairyann McClain now lives, Steele Route
One.

Curtis G. Beason, Sr. was Tax Collcctor of St. Clair and Blount Countics 184l-

1845. He was a Statc Scnator and a delegate of Alsbama Constitutional Convention

-1865.--He is'buried»athnion~Hcthodist*Ghurch"Comctcryijtoclc.

The Héll family settled at the home place of‘Hiss Tera Tramel, Stecle Route
Onc about 1850.

The Logan family place was ncar the 01d Fidelity Church on Stecle Route Onc.
They came from North Caroiina and settled there while tho‘Iﬁ&iéns wero still here,
- (Most of the Indians had been removed by 1834.)°% Tisdel Logan was a well-lnown
Baptist preachcr among the c.rly scttlcrs. Tlsdel S Logan was clected Probate

Judge or St. Clair County but duc to the fact thkt hc had not re31gncd hlS jot as

'ff:Tax Collcctor soon enough he was not allownd to servc.j J 'W Inzcr was appolntcd in

. his place., This was durlng the ycars just followlng thc Whr Bctwccn the States.

  , The family of J. Hugh Stcphens, a local Mcthodlst prcacher, lived in the Gulf
of Chandler Mountain. They werc among the flrst whlte settlers. Hls son,.Tom
Stephens, had been postmaster at Gadsden for.a number of years at the time of his
death, in the 1940's, |
1. Beason Geneology pp. 55-56
2. History of Alabama, i. B, Moore

S
o IS
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The Deerman family scttled on land_locatcd on highway 11 south of Steele in the
1830{5. It is from this family that the Dccrmant's Chapel Mcthodist Church was named.

‘Julia Ann Decrman married William S. Beason (son of Curtis G. Sr., previously
mentioned. ) Tpcy were the grandparents of Dr. W. D. Partiow, past Superintendent
of Brice Hospital at Tuscaioosa, and the grc#t—grandparcnts of the writer of this
brief history.

The Smith Family was grandparcnts of Eerbert Smith and Milton Johns. They sct-
tled first on Chandler Mountain in 1858, Later they moved to Steele.

1 is thought that a2 Whisenant family (unrelated to the Whisenants who now live

in Stcele) built the first cabin in Stecle city limits on the site where Mrs. Cluvia

Horrow's house now stands. They were the first scttlers in the community, but they

Vﬂsﬁgygd:gq;qwgﬁlyVdvshartﬁtiﬁé;”‘fhdwéfééiewfgﬁily,7£6§éﬁfufﬁo Wﬁiébﬁaﬁf iéﬁd and -

moved into the log cabin; so it is from this fomily thﬁt our scttlement got its name.
This was about 1645 and 1850.

Toiivcr Steele, grandfather cf the Rev. Dozier Steele brought his wife and ten
children, somc of whom were grown but none mar;icd, f?om-North G?orgia in covcr¢d
wagons. The children were Nancy,’Hattic, Mzry, Sarah, Abe, King, Joc, Quillian,
Jeffic énd Sylvester. Though thdléountry was sparccly settled 2t that time the

Stccle children lost little tlmc 1n flndlng other young pcople. Soon fibe Steele

. marrlcd onc of Jocl Chandler‘“ duughtcrs who 11VGd wnth her parcnts necar what is

now callcd Cobbs Hill on thtlc Canoc Creek in Etowah County but then St. Clair County.

Jocl Chandlcr was onc of thrce _men chosen to sclcct a szte for thc Court House

whcn St Clair became a countj. John ish, John Hasscy, John Cannlngham, Jocl Chana-
ler and George Shortwell werc appointed to superintend the crection of the court
house. Jocl Chandler was 2 Justice of the Peace. His home wes one of the first .

~oting placos in St. Clair County. Chandler Mountain was named for his family.

e e e F—— A e N . L
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Pink Shahan marriecd a Chandler, a sister to Mrs. Steele. It was he who had the

mill built that has been kmown as the Shahan Miil, Cobbs Mill and the Killian Hill.\

Ruff Owens and David Partlow built the mill. In the late Bo's a thriving busi-
ness was carried on there. It included, a flour mill, 2 grist mill, a sow mill, a
cotton gin and a general merchandise store. Mrs. Dora Buffiﬁgton and Susic Smith
mzde the white silk bags which were used as bolting cloth for the flour mill.

The Battles family and the Countrymans wercvliving in the flatwoods. Other
families who lived in this vicinity before the Wor Between the States were: the
Johns; whose cabin stood near John's Spring ncar the placc where B. W. Pope's home

now stands; thc Runsuckers, whose home was in Camp Sibert where Johnny Bowlin now

lives; the Blairs and Turners whose home places uerc across the road from Wilson's

~Place l.n Etw&h Ccmfrl:y NOWy but—themr was St Clair Coun‘by """" Thc"“Currys"o'vmed”thc oo

tract‘cf land, (Moore Spring and branch) between the Stcele claim and that of the
Blairs, Dr. J. L. !, Curry who réprcsents iAlabama in Statuary Hall, thhingﬁon, D. C.,
was a‘hcmbcr of or closcly related to this pioncer family of Steele. The Baggetts!'
homa ﬁlacc was across tife ridge onriand $till oﬁnéd by Luther Baggett. A Pope family
lived on the Georgia Road where the old Free place was.

Milton John's paternal grandfather receiyed the track of land including the
John's Spring from the Umited Staﬁg% goverhhégﬁ?#s éompenéation for services in the
Ihdian Wars. N ;%: ﬁfhﬁw -

The Baggett family came to tﬁzg countrytagéﬁi 1850; Luther Baggett's fathor,

J. D. was threc years old Durlng the Civil war J D Baggett, L. A. Decerman, Polk
Smith and Frank Battles, who were w1th the Union Army, were taken prisoncrs by the
Confederates and werc being transported on the "Sultana" on the Mississippi River
near Memphis to a prison camp. Duc to an explosion the ship sank. Baggett, Dcerﬁhn,
and Battles swam to shore, Polk Smith, uncle of Milton Johns was drowmed.

W. H. Baggott uncle of Luther was Tax Collector of St. Clair County after the

Jor Betwcen the States.
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John Turner, father of Elijoh Turncr, marricd Janc Blair. During the War she
staycd with her parents ncer Shilch Church whilc her husband was away. One day in
1865, Elijah a child four years of age was playing in the road belween Shiloﬁ Church
and the Blair home when a tired wayworn traveler stcpped to talk to nim. After being
~sked where his pa was, the child éaid, et fighting the Yankees." The rcturning
soldier toolk his son in his arms and said, "Your Pa's come home." The John Turner
nome place was this side of Little Canoc Creck on the north side of the road. The
Turners were among the first members of Shiloh Church which wes established nbout
1830.

Mac Pope, grandfather of W. E. Pope built the grist mill ncar his home on the

I"rcc branch Thls mill was later known as the Cook Mlll also the Frcc dlll.

_Most of thesc c&rly settlers followcd the Gcorgla Road from Vorth or South

Carélina or Georgia to iAlabama. These settlers lived in rough log cabins, carried
théir water from springs, cooked on fireplaces, endurcd many hardships, but were a
brave couragcous people.

The pionecr familiéﬁ werc mostly Baptist in belief.  They built a log church
in the flatwoods between 1840 and 1850. It was not until after the War Between the
States that therc were ecnough famiiics in this community to build a church within
its bounds. The Baptlst moved thclr church from the flatwoods and built a log
church ncar the locatlon of the present Hbthodlst church. |

About this tlme therc was a stage linc running through Stecle twice weekly.

Al B, Hbore 1n hlS "Hlstory of Alabuma"states that a stagc,llne opcrated twice
weekly between Tuscaloosa and Huntsv1lle." Mbre than llke;y thls line went through
Steele. It carried meil and passengers.

The Billy Jones old house built about 1827 was used as an over-night stopping

place or Inn. This Inn was across Gulf Creek from Steele. Blairville(Wilson's

Place in Etowah County) and fishville were the nearest post offices. It is said that
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the old road that runs between Pierce Russell's home and the Bert Pope home was
called the Huntsville Roéd. It ran by the Jchn's and Baggetts' old places and Cobb's
Mill in Etowah County. .

‘The planters with cotton to sell had to haul it to Huntsville, Montevallo or
Rome to be sold.

In the years just following the War Between the States other families came to
this seection. Among these were the Lutes, Shaws, Gaddys, Trotters, Wilcoxes, Smiths
(parents of John Smith), Edmonsons, Moores and Pritchards.

Up until 1876 all settlers worshipped together in the Baptist church which was
constructed of logs. Now the Baptlsts (Owens, Moores and Stecles) became progressive ’

.and built a new church _near the locatlon of thelr present church The few Hcthodlst

'jfamllles which included the Gaddys, Crumps, Pritchards, Shanks, and Edmonsons bought
‘vthe deserted Baptist church and the church lot from the Ben F. Owens family. In the
year 1880 a new Methodist church (a frame building) was crected on this lot. It was
" used by the Methodists until 1938 when the brick building was eonstructed that is in

use today.

The first Baptist church on their present lot was destroyed by a cyelone soon
after it was built 1n 1877. Uncle Bllly Moore did most of the work in putting up the
N frame building. The people must have been slow paying him for when the cyclone came
‘he 3aid it was because the people wuuldn't pay him. Another church was built the

next year. In 1939 the thlrd church on this lot was torn down to make way for the
| present brick buildlng -‘ . .

About the year 1870 or 1871 the A. G. S. Railroad was built through Stecle.

This greatly changed the llfe of the community. Toliver Steele who gave four acres
of land for the depot and section houses was the first railway station agent. The

Railroad Company named the station "Steele" in his honor.
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Tt scers +that Steele was very droua cf.his‘pcsitiur Ter wher the truins stepond re
walted cub and intréduced himself to the conductor as "Toliver Stecle thc Slaticn.
Sgeat" and cfiered ary assistancc that mizht be ne~ded. OUn on2 czcasica it i35 s2id
cirat he flogznd 2 train to stbp and when it did so the corductor szid 'Well, where
is the passenger?" Mr, Stcele said, "ell, thore weren't any to get on, I just
thought somcbody might want to get off.M .

Socn efter the coming of the railrond a post office was opened in the Trotter
stere. Mr. Bill Trotter, o one-armed confcderate veteran was the first posumaster.
Mr. Trotter not only harded out 1213 hc wos supposcd te mecy the trains ard deliver
the mail to thems One train passcd through Steele near médalgnt-ilrs. Irctier, catiy-

ing a lantern always met this troia with Mr. Trotter. Cn cac occasinn aster deliver-

__ing the mail to the train they stw o dirk cloud gathering so they raa tack to their

home to cscape the on :oﬁing storm. As thcy closed the f:ont deor behind them a
cyclone struck Steelc ard des*rorced the Baptist,

Cther post musters have beea: Frud Smith, Fanny Cobb, Janc wheelcr, J. J.
Edmondson, R. 1. Moorc~a§d Eirt Brock.

In 1903 tle first rurcl roude iras started from the Steele post office. Luke
Buffington was the firs. nostmen. He rede horscbkack. Buriﬁg the twentics threc
rural routes ran from Stecle post office. N. J. Turner audlﬁ} ¢. Z)lis werce cther

carricrs.

Uncle abic Stecle ran a toanyard beforc, during and after the Yar Ectwecn the

. States. Uncle ibie's work was so important to the Centederate cause that he was
exempt from scrvice in the’army. ﬁié “anaery wﬁs iccatcd'in oad néar the .brrnch froa
the Steele Spring just across the railrcad near the present home of Cecii Miilinax.
In thé late 1870 or early BO's this tenncry included 2 shoe and hazmess shop run 3y
J. M. Gaddy, Buck Griffin and a Mr. Cates. Hr. Gaddy wes o cobhler, a carpentcr

and hclpcd-to build the first Methodist church in Steele. He wrs thie groat grand-

father of the writce-
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The first school house in Steelc was on the hill near the 1Hllinghem komc. IT
was a onc room, log building with 2 large fireplace to heat it. This school was
supported by tuition from each child. it one time Miss "Pct" Cox tought in cne
room of her home located where the C. E. Berttram housc now stands. i Mr. Beck
taught a school of cightcen continuous months in the log Baptist Church near the
present Methodist Church. The building was heated by 2 large fircolace, while the
children sat on punchcon benches which hed peg legs and no boacks. Due to Fr. Beck'=z
name as an able professor sceveral schelars boarded here to attend his school. Dcllic
Trotter, Lola Shanks, and some of the Moore boys attended.

ibout 1880 a new two-story frame school bulldlng was erected on the lot there

‘ C G Qullls s house now stands. The upper story was used by thc Mxsonsythe Tower

for the school. About 1900 this school was known as the Valley Grove College. It is

said to have rated with the best sghools in the county.®* Students came frcm differ-
cnt scctions of the county and boarded in Steele. Professor J. i. B. Stovall was an
abic and well-loved tcaggcr of the Collcge . The faculty usually included twc or
thrcc members. Other'tcachcrs of this time were Mrs.Lizzic Nunnally Gramling, Mrs.
Lucy Edmonson Wheeler, Miss Della Cox, E. B, Moore, H. T. Moore, W. A. Whitmire
(1885-1887), L. W. Buffington and Susy Ausburn (aunt of Ward Formon). E. B. Moore
studiecd at Whlnnt Grovn Collegc. He was a successful tcachcr at homc as well as
cboard. It is remembercd that whcn unlform state cxamlnatlons ‘for teachers became
required there was a teacher shortage, since many were not ablc to pass the examina-
tion. The above named teuchcrs were ‘certified howcvnr.

While Valley Grove Collcge was at its best, a movement got undcrway to change
the name of Stecle to Valley Grove. This idea did not get much support and when the
Railroad Company "turncd thumbs down" on it, the movement soon died out. )

#Supt. N. B, Spradlcy in his report in 1900 names scven schools as deserving special

mention for good werk. Valley Grove was onc of these schools.
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1901 the school builiding wos destroyed by fire and ancthoer tus-sivry builliny,
was erected. The decd to this building ~md et was made jointly tc the Odd-Telilous,
Insons and Stecle School. This building was used until 1928 when the prescent rock
puilding was ccnsﬁructcd. In 1950 2 modcrn concrctc‘block lunchroom was built for
t%:ec school.

Tecachers other then these previously mentionced who have scrved as principals
cf thﬁ Stcele School arc Bill Griffin, Iliss Ethel Gilciarist, Hiss 3eatrice Knight,
C. E. Berttram, Jy Fronldin Browm, L. D, Byrd, J. M, Rich, Iugh Toland, Dodd Cow,
Ormiond Buffington and €. G. Gualls. The following hove been listed os teachers in
the school: Lila Blair Geincs, Bertic Turher Qualls, Julia Harrison Shaw, Eucll
Gilchrist, .mna Baggett, liclle Turner Countrymmn, fimiaic Lou Goincs Venable, Ruky

Russcll Lois Beason Russcll, Gol;h,E son SnovalL, Zrma John tHller, Wilma IMullirax

Hasors, Eudelle Eallmork Harris, Tirs, Dodd fox, ibbic Pi ibore; Tou Turner;-Lois
- lawrenece, Lilic Mac Beason, .nnie Wpitfield, Vivian Qualls, Weavers Moore, zad
Crace Langston. Mrs. inne Baggett an cxecellent primary toacher tewght ot Slecle

School for 3L yeers. She retired in 2952, C. G. Qualls has been principal at Steeic

for f1¢tccn years. ¥

About 1900 Stecle wiac 1ncorporatcd with Bob Little cs lyor. slderman wore
J. Y. Moore, Lukc Buffington, G. G. Wright. A1 Smith and E. 3. Holton were police-
non.,  The incornoration s loter dcclhrcd 1llc0al

Sloat and Bush, two northcrﬁcrs built a pc ch packihg house across the railroad
from the station about 1290. They bad many young ncach orchards started on the hills
around Stecle ond on Chendler lountain, During pacldng scason several pcople were
employed to prepare the fruit for sﬁipmcnt. o

Sloat and Bush constructed 2 basket factory where Willis Owen's house is. Logs
were soaked in hot water and steomed, then run through the vancer mochine. They é:fg

smnll baskets for packing fruit. The business wcs cstnblished on borrcwed monay nnd

for somec rcason did not pay off soc the basket factory was short lived,
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Sloat lived in thc_ -St.cale home which hc bought from Sylvester Steéle.

For scversl vears there were three operators working in shifis 2% the roilroad
station, which shous thot the railronds were deing o thriving business.

Ir. Crump was the first doctor in Stecle. He chose the plzce where the Wilcox
hore is for his residence. He wos 2 Christisn geatleman end @ great addition %o the o
cormmunity. His wife, lrs, Crump, was z social leader, gifted in dirccting socizl
cvents. She always helped the teachers coach their pupils in "clocution," preparing
them for the "exhibition". The pupils were permitted to lecave school and go to her
necme for coachingz. In worm weather they stood on a stump in her yord and rohcc::.sod

their specches.

Morc should be said cbout the doctors who have ministcred se faithfully to the

inhobitants of Stecle. 4mong them ore Dr, Childs Dr. Crump, Dr. .. B. Gramling,

m

Dr, Clayton, Dr. Ross Tramcl, Dr. R. F, HcComnell, Dr. M. P, Stevens and Dr, T, T,
Whceler. These doctors were truc to the "Country Doctor Type" of a fouw years back,
They rcde thousands of mgles on horscback or in buggics answering calls both day and
night, often visiting fomilies where they knew there was little vprobability of re-
ceiving pay for their sorvices.

'lfy'phoz.d fever took its 1}010 rxfpm the ci”tize/nsv fqr mony years. Ssnctimes three
orfour members of a formily would b;.‘attachedbe tho dreadcd discase and would live

for weeks at the point of death, Often Ceath struck twice w:.th:x.n a few weeks within-

the same family, . .

Sl

Lifc of the scttlers in Stecle commmnity was hard since tﬁcrc was alwmys work

to do ond no modern convenicnces to meke the work casier, but the church offered the

. settlers o means of social contact as well as a spiritusl up-1ift. Woddings werc.
always great social cvents as will be noted from the following account as given by
some of the older citizens.

#Pkr, Childs, surgeon in Confederate Army. A "southern gentlemen" type. He never
practiced medicine in Steele, as he was retired due to his age when he came here.
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It is re@embér that Dr; McConnell came here from Blount County. He boarded with
the Tfotter family, a2 leading family of Steele. Their home was above the average of
that day (about 1900). They had beautiful china lamps hanging from the ceiling in
thelr living and dining room, also wool rugs with huge roses and red velvet chairs,
A piano, the first in Steele, graced their parlor. It was here that the Trotters
entertained with an "infair" dinner honoring Dr. McConnell and his bride, the daugh-
ter of a local Hethodist preacher, by the name of Nickolson, who lived at the Nora
Crump home. Aunt Sally Ralls (colored), mother of Susie Rallé who spent her last
days near Ashville helped with the dinner and added pomp to the occasion bylher

elaborate serving at the table. Dr. John Bass and Dr. Cason, of Ashville, Luke and

Will Buffington (mere boys at the time) were among the guests at the dinner. Mrs.

Trotter used her best china which included individual pudding dishes and ind;;;&;al
salt cellars. The dining hall was darkened, the hanging lamps were lighted., The
menu included boiled ham, boiled pudding and old fashioned pound cake, that was bcat’
oné hour by hand, beforq@it was cqoked. Aunt Martha Smith and other neighbors assisted
in preparing the food and laying the table. The Nelse Moore house that stood where |
where the school house now stands was the home that Dr. McConnell built for his bride.
Another wcdding of that perlod that commanded much attention in this area was
that of ngs Ollle Crump, adoptcd daughter of Dr. Crump, to J. W. Gilliland of Attalla.
Nothlng was spared by Mrs. Crump, glfted in entbrtalnlng and d01ng things in grand
style. to make the occasion to be long remembcrcd in Steele.
The marr1agc vows weré read before the alter in the Stecle Hethodlst Church.
The church was claborately decorated with home grown flowers. Among out-of-town
guests for this wedding were Mr. and Mrs. Edgar Lec of Attalla. Mr. and Mrs, Gillilars

now live ncar Anniston.
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'In 1920 there was a School Improvement Socicty organized at Steele School. It
was made up of the parents and teachcrs. They met at night and both parents attended.
Mrs. S. J. Qualls was first president. Mr. J. F, Brownc was principal and Mrs. John
Russell and Anna Baggett were teachers. Dr. J. I. Riddle, who is now president of
Judson College, was a visiting speaker at one of thesc mectings. He was then princi-
pal of Etowah County High School.

The members of the society engaged in debates sometimes for recreation and en-
tertainment. It is remembered that this question was once dcbated on "be it resolved
that the dishrag is more uscful to thc housewife than the broom." Uncle Nelse Moore:
with his southern drawl and his many comical cxpressions was the star comedian of the

group. . o

—--In-1930-or-1931-Hugh Toland was principal-of-Stccle-School. —The first Pu Tu Ae o

was organized with Mrs, L. W, Buffington as first president. Some charter merbers
were Mrs. Eula Burttram, Mrs. Bill Ellis, Mrs. Hugh Toland, Mrs. Essic Frce, Mrs.
Judy Smith, Mrs. N. J. Turner, Miss Jimmie Lou Turnmer, Mrs. Abbic Moorc and Mrs, Anna
Baggett. Prizes were gifren to the pupils for perfect attendance. Shrubbery was put
out around the school building. Mrs. Judy Smith was later president.

In 1937 C. G. Qualls was serving as principal. Mrs. Mae Renfroe was elected
president of the P, T. A, The P. T. A, bought a piano and made costumes for the
operetta, . . o

Mrs. Henry Jones served as next P. T, A. president. She was succecded by Mrs.
Vivian Beason. Venetianw;iinds were put in the school building at the cost of
$11,.50 each. |

Mrs. Leroy Partlow was the next P. T. i. president. During her administration
an electric pump was put in the well and drinking founts and lavatories were put °

in all the classarooms.
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‘Mrs. Ila Hﬁtchins was the P, T, A. president in 1941 and 19L42. From time to
time library books were bought and added to the school library. Hore blinds were
also bought for the school,

Mrs. Essie Free became president in 1942 or 1943. The women were felling the
necd of a lunchroom and worked toward this objective. In 19kl, Jewel Wilson was
elected president, Mrs. Essie Free, vice-president, Mrs. E. R. Shaw, secretary and
>treasurer. The lunchroom projcct was planned and soon put into operation. Mrs,
Jewel ¥Wilson and Mrs., Essie Free served the first lunch to forty-five pupils on
October 26, 19LL at a cost of fifteen cents per pupil. The first menu consisted of

potato chips, hot dogs, apples and milk. Due to the war it was hard to ob‘a-h dishcs

and cooking utensilss Mrs: Will Carden bought the forks in Birmingham. Mre. Fldon

Shaw and Mrs. Jcwel Wilson bought the stove and cooking utensils, For six weeks thr
women donated their work, coming two ecach day, cooking and scrving the meals which
were planned by Vivian Qualls. Lunches werc served from the vacant classroom vhich
was made into a Idtchen?

Mrs. Howard Owens served two terms as president in 1949 and 1950. During this
time the concrcte'bloc“ lunch room was censtructed. It cost the P. T. A. $1000.
The remalnlnc bulldlng costs were pald by the county board of education. Mr, L. D,
Byrd and the Rev. J L. HcHugh did the work with other helpers.

Mrs. Jack Hudglns was elccted pr051dent in 1950. Immedlate aims of the P. T.di.
- werc to imprqve phc school grounds and driveways. By Febrﬁgry 1951 some ofvthesé
aims had been accoﬁplishcd. The organization began worldng toward the installation
of indoor rcst rooms. ‘

By the spring of 1952 rest rooms had been installed in the school. Our thanke
go to Superintendent Roy Gibson and the County Board of Education. The P. T. 4.
furnished 5450 for drilling the well.

A spirit of cooperation and understanding betuwcen parents and teachers has exds.

throughout the ycars. The result of which cannot be estimated in a material way,
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The First School Bus In St. Clair County

' In 1922 Steele District had voted in the threc mill tax, but not 211 the county
had done so. In that fall, 1922, Stccle Trusteces, Luke Buffington, Jessc Shaw and
Will Moore, working with Mr. Carl Q. Baxtcr, County Superintendent of Education and
{he County Board who issued a warrant for %500 bought a truck with the cxcess tax
moncy from the district and started transporting pupils from Siccle to Etowch County
High School in Attalla, nine miles away. (Odenville, twenty-five ﬁilcs away was the
ncarcst high school in St. Clair Co.) Each pupil was supposcd to pay onc dollar per
week to lkecp the bus operating,

A few Stecle residents opposed the idea so strongly that Supt. Baxter asked for

a ruling on its'légality}”'Drf'Harﬁbll’deié,”ndW'prcsidCht”of‘Howard'collcgc, 2t that

time Attorney Gcﬁcral, ruled iﬁ favor of the bus - it continued to fﬁhiféfMSixryéﬁfim‘
Then St. Clair County School people appealed to Steele patrons to allow their children.
to ride the St. Clair County Bus, that would be provided and would transport pupils
free of charge to the ngwly organized High School at iishville. Then the promoters

of the first bus used gioir inflﬁcnce-to support their own county school and sent
their children to Ashville, Théugh some fow went on to Etowah, providing their owm
transportation.

This first school truck in St. Clair County was a far cry from thc modern buses
that transport théjchildrcn today."It Wasvan'opcn Model T. truck with oil cloth
curtains that huhé‘down at the sides and baék in rainy weather. In sunny weather
the curtains weré rolled up and strapped at the top and fhe pupils enjoyed an open
air ride. Two benches ran parallel with thevtruck bed. The pﬁpils sat %acing each
other with éheir knecs touching in the aisle. Usually two pupils rode in the front
seat with the driver. If he werc a single man or boy this was a choice seat, T&o

or three or sometimes as many as five boys stood on the wooden step at the back of

the truck and rode in safety. The bus was wrecked once. No one was seriously hurt.
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Often the roads were so muddj that the passengers got off and let the bus pull
through the mud by itself or with the big boys pushing. Then after wading through
the mud to the bus the pupils got on again and the girls tried to repair d;magcs to
their good looks before they reached schocl.

This was before the days of the Beauty Parlor, if onc pupil needed a haircut (the
shingled bob was in style) or had shopping to do in town the wholc bus load went to
town. So it happened that almost every afterncon of the wock the Stecle bus was
parked on the strects of sittalla for about, an hour.

If it rained very much the creeks were up, so often the bus was turncd back at

the deep water or drowned out in n¢d—strcan and nnd to wait scvecral hours to be

"‘pullcd out by mules after hclp had boen summonscd If tho rldcrs wcre ready when the

bus came by cach morning -~ Good ! If not the driver waltcd until they got thcrc.

When the driver put a little hand mirror in the front of the "truck" in order
to scc the back step, the riders declarcd that he was spying on them, suspecting
them of disorderly cond;;t. The driver was patient and always on the job. Part of
the time he was paid tcﬁ dollars a month, &t other times he was allowed to kcep
what remained of the collected fares after operating cxpenses werc paid.

The riders quarrcled among thcmsclvcs, sang, played games and courted and in
spite of all mcst of them never stoppcd until they got that High School Dlplomg.
The bus drivers serving during thls tlmo werc: The Rcv.,J. L. Garnctt, then pastor
of the Crawford's Cave Methodist Church Circuit, Dick Clayton, Edmond Crump and
Birgc Smith. E ’

fimong the first pupils riding thé bus werc Eudell Hallmark, Pearl iutrey, Wilma
Mullinax, Vivian Buffington, Ruth Turmer, Robbie McWaters, Weavers Frecman, Wilma
Johng, Montez Little, Bertic Whisnant, Gracc Shaw, Modenc Jones, Ethel Brown, Dick
Clayton, Jessc Johns, Charlie Ruseell, Gordon Wilcox, Cecil and James Qualls, Edmond

Crump, Willard Trammel and Fred Bell,
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It might be interesting to note that Dr. John Ingle Riddle, now president of
Judson Collcge, was principal of the Etowah County High School at that time.

Of the number who rode the bus during the si:xz years it was operated sisxteen
became teachers. Seven arc still teaching. Seven hold éollcgo dcgreés. Onc is 2
lawyer, one Supervisor of School Transportation, five hold responsiblc office nosi-
tions in diffcrent industries of the stéte, onc is in Railway Postal scrvicc, cne a
Lal_rOud Signal llaintairer, onc heads on automobile commany. Othors hold reliablc
positions and arc gocd citizens wherever they are, 4s their parcats were sold cn
the idea of educaticn, their success proves that oducation poys off,

Todpj teele thh a Donulatlon of 641 ciaims to runk thlra in sizc in St. Clair

_Ccunty. In Dcceﬂbcr 1052 Steele was 11corp0rhtcd lPuO a municipa 11ty. Wlwm. Poze

is mayor. 4ldermen arc lfred O'Dopnell, Paul Popc, Ciyde lMorrow, Hoyt Hammonds and
Tom Wood., Rox Buffington is city élerk. '

fis the forest in carly days furnished homes for the scttlers, fuel for heat,
tannic acid for the tangyards and tics fo; the railroad, so today the forest is sup-
porting a large lumber industry in Steele. The Pope and Frec Lumber Company cmploys

about thiry men with en averoge weckly pay roll from 52500 to 53000,

There are seven stores in Steele. They are.owned and operated by B. W, Pope,
Paul Pope, Roy Beason, Horace Shaxpton, T. A, Lassetter, A, B, and Clyde Morrow. Twe
cafe's are operatcd by Lena Gaskcy'ana E&a Blackman.,

Jack Hudgins manages the Stecle Garagc. John Russell runs a grist mill and
7illis Owens, a barbar shop. Myrtle Ow;ns operates a beauty parlor in her home.

Burt Brock is post master. N. J. Turmer delivers mail daily on a 66 mile rsutc.

About 60 Steele citizens arc emplcjed in industries of Attalla, Gadsden or
. Alabama City. They commute daily. Eleven men and women follow the teaching professic
James and Carl Smith arc in the photography business. Scven of our men are employed

by the railroad company, whilc cight are carpenters by trade.
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Several older citizens arc rftlred from the Railroad, Government Servlco, the
hlnlstry, and teachlno but arc still active in communiity activities.

Within the city limits one hundred ninety five (195) homes have electricity.
Steele has cighty-one telephones listed in the directory. The city is selling bonds
to finance a water system for the toun.

Steele has three full time churches. The Baptist with P, W. Mitchcll as pastor;
the Methodist, Ellis Johnson, pastor; and the Nazcrene Church, of which J, 4, Imerscn
is pastor. The Nazercne Church in Stecle was organized in 1945. The churches work
together in a commendable viay toward the bettorment of community life.

Other evidence that our citizens arc aspiring toward a higher plain of living

is thr organization and wor k of the Stcele Lions Club, the Garden Club and a Boy

" Scout Troop.

Tﬂé'Steciéwiions Club was chartered in January 1952 with 34 members., Ben Burt-
tram was cleccted president of the Club.,

The Steelc Garden Club was organized in March 1953. It has 25 members. Mrs.
Bivian Free is president.

ps
The Reverend Ellis Johnson is Scoutmaster of the Scout Troop which is sponsorcd

<, by the Mcthodist Church,

The Steele P. T. A. is doing 2 worthwhilc work with Mrs. Doward Hollingsworth

a5 j:rqsidm‘c .

The contract has b001 lct and work hgs begun on a $70,000 addition to the school

' olant. An’audltorlum, classroom, prlnc1p21‘s officc and a heating plant will be

5%~1nc1udedb1nkthc ncw bulldlng Steolc vommunl ty would likc to cxpress its appreciation
to Superintendent Roy Gibson and the St. Clair County Board of Education for their
cfforts in promoting this project. .
Steele has not grown as the "Magic City" in Alabama grew, neither has it made
the rapid strides that some of its ncighboring towns have. But there is o spirit of
fricndliness and cooperation among its inhabitants that has caused it to be said,

"If you oncc live in Steele you always want to live there.”
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Some of thc pecople who scttled at Easonville werce pcople of cducation, refine-
ment, and means. They brought with them slaves to help buila homes and clear lond.
They brought books, music, and furniture. Thoy built good homes. They lived more
leisurcly then did the scttlers of somc of the other parts of the county. They hed
more time for social activitics ond 1lifc there wos plecsant. There were many parsies,
and many kirnds of hunting. Onc form of recreation, however, was not tolerated for a
long time. It was dancing. When some of the younz pceple, as late as the 1890's,
took a liking to a Gancc which they colled Mtwistification" they were promptly called
to an accounting by the churchmen. Wnen ir. George Stone, Sr., who was slighily
dgeaf, got up in churcihr to protest the dencing he said, "3Some of our young pcople arc
doing a dance which thcy call buck-up-to-the-nation.™ lr. Stone had sisundersteod
tac word M"uwistification.” .

For o long time after the white scttlers come, the cormunity wos not colled
Tasonville but was leiowm as Bat-.nd-Comp., It was a Ilothodist comp ground. Bocause
of the springs on what is now Joc Ingromts farm ond the stream (Easonville Branck),
the location was an idcal compsite. Every rear people frowm miles around camc there
ond attended a camp meeting. They came in buggics and wzgons and brought with then
food ond bodding for their familics, and feed for their. stock. The last year thot o
neeting was held the people had become so wicked that some of the stock were booly
cut one night. Ilony of thc people therc, uwpon hearing of it, fcarcd for the safevy
of tnecir owm stock ond fled in the night from the comp. Thot pub on ond To sat-ind-

Comp, ' : :

{5 CIVIL LR JHD RECOIISTRUCTION FERIOD

The Civil Viar oand Reconstruction peried wes 2o sad time for the pcople of Eoson~
ville. Most of the young men went cuey to fight for the Confederacy. Thoy were
Pnilip Weite, Jim Johnson, Jim Trusscll, John ond Jim Drake, Villiem Welker Viadsworth,
Donmen Turner and Mack Collins., Philip Waito wns the only onc who lost his life.

He wos killed by a draftf-dodger at Vandiver. Doring the Civil Wer mony Southeorn
fomilics were pro-union, and did not want to fight ~goinst the Federal zovernment.
Some of these fomilies hid their boys out in the hills te keep thewm from -oing to the

army. It wos Philip Weite's assignment to ferrct them out and get them into the
Confederate Srry. He leorncd thot a nunbver of boys uere hiding ncar Vandiver. i
found that their hiding place had o very norrow passago-way leoding to it, and only
onc pcrson at the time could cnter it. No officor could have cntered it to apprciiend
the boys without being killed first so he stood watch necar their homes woiting for
them to go home for o visit. Vhen one of them venturca home, £hilip tried to copturs
i1im and was killed in the effort, '

Many of such boys did hove to 7o to the Confcdercte Jrmy and some of them pur-
noscly lct themsclves be ceptured by the Union forces. iir. Depman Turncr was onc of
them, He was a conscicntious person and his people were good pcople. They didn't
think thot the South should have seccded from the Union ond thoy didn't want their
sons to fight oagainst the Union. .fter he was forced to o 2gcingt kis will, he
watched for an opportunity to surrender himsclf tc the Uaiou forces. It canc onc
doy- when ne and a2 group of Confederate soldicrs were facing ~ bank of Union men.
Both groups were lying bchind logs, bushes, ond banles which scparated them. The -
strip that scparated them was narrow. Iir. Turncr wes on the ond of the Confederote
group and he started working himsclf further awoy firom his group and forwnrd into
somc bushes toward the Federal scldicrg. Finnll:r, just shead of him he saw two nmen
in bluc lying behind a log. Eec ducked leowucr and put o white handkerchief on the end
of his pgun-barrcl. Then he crawled forward and cnsad it over the log., Immediately
the Union men looked over the log and beckened to him to comc on. Onec of them said,
in a low voice, "Comc on over, Johmny (Bcobj. Come on.*



ey

Tit might bocone jammed. iiccording to My

‘The otlier one said, "Lay your gzun dewn, Johnny.!
The first onc sdid, "He's 2ll right. Let him bring his gun.m®

M h

So Mr. Turner surrcndercd himsclf withk his gun in his hand which s against

arry regulations. He spent the remainder of the wor years cooiking for the Federal

-rEy. He was treated well and had plenty to cat. ..s long as he lived he told his

suwrrender story without shame. He had nerely gonc over to the side thnt he thoughs
w25 right in the begimning and he no regrets.

5

The people back home did their bit by siriving toword increosod nroduction on
che land and by mrking sacrificcs in cvery woy possible in order to hclp win the var,
Two men, Mr, Ira Hormon ond Mr. Fran Lec, sorved the Confede cracy by boating cocal

gdouwn the river from a loading point ncor Hoglond to llontgensry whore it was uscd
in cmmunition plants vhich monufrctured ;ux—novdc” for thc Confederate Lrrmy. .. minc

near Rogland supplied tic coal. Iir. Tec was head sicerman of onc boat and 1r, Horron

was hoad stecermon of another boai, It wa
of ccal over the shoals and throush the r
sorie of the dongerous rocks clearcd ont of
shoots" a littlc wider than tic boat ona b

o

s 1ot casy werk to got the heavy flathoots
ids. The Condederate goveriwiont hod had

voat had to be Jrﬂcuvcrcd Jjust rizht or

ic
theoshoals teonake onenings, called "boot
c
)

to get the coal down on time but they were giad when it was over. The trip dowm
took about five days on an average. The swift water c:rricd thom about ns fast as
& troin would have carried thom but ubb slow waters slowed them doim. Thcy mede th
return trip as far as Talladega by train. Upon ronching in loading v0¢1t near
Ragland they always found ncw flatboc ts, mrde by a crew of werlcwen whosc ¢ jeb it.sas

tc scc that the bohts we ready when they were nceded. There uas never a delay.

At the close of the’war the pconle had 2 hh-a time just as ‘bAy did throushcut
the South. Thce older people living in the corrunity now romember heoring tncvr
parents or grandparents tell of the povery thot they ondured in that postwar period.
They did without many things that thy necded and tth uscd such makeshift substitute
as parched corn for cof?ce, persimion sced for buttons, and polkeberry juice rixed
with water for ink. They took o thc s0il under their qﬁorchouscs ~nd boiled i% to
szt .ne salt to usc ogain,

The Confcdcratc =olulcrs came heme telling stories of the mnger that thoy.
cndured during the war. The older peopic who rcncnoc* hearing them calk say that
tioy never had cnough food and werc hungry ncoriy 211 during the vor. .11 of then
scttled on farms in the valley and farimed. Iﬂ’”cr diodsuortly who returned from tihe
war with an injured hand, combincd teaching and farming. In the 1-%te 1860's he

started teaching and tauéht a short term of school overy yeor until his death in 1877

The slaves went frec ond some of them sottled eon land nbout thrcc miles west of
Zasonville. Their descendants live there ztill., They iive in reasonzbly liveable
homes on their forms., They have a church 1nd thoy did hove o vcbool in tie community

until consolidation of schools came cbout. These descend~its of the Eo sonville slaies
arc rather idealistic negroces. mhcy hhvc good nrinciples to live by ~nd arc respected

and trusted by the white citizens. cy are *hduvtrlouq cnd intelligent. Too,
they strive to educate their chllcron. «» number of boys and girls from thot cormmu-
nity have gene a way to college.

TRon's accoume of 1t They alimays mmazod

S

-
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THE EARLY HOMES

Some of the first dwellings of Easonville were frame buildings and some were
logs. The rooms were very large. The large kitchen was set apart from the main
part of the house. Sometimes a bridge-like walk was built from the main part of the
house to the kitchen door. The kitchen was a workroom where much work besides cook-
ing was carried on. It was really a part-time factory wherc much was made which is
bougiit at the store today. There the women of the house did the spinning, weaving,
candle making, and part of the sewing. Sometimes dying of cloth, rendering of lord,
soap making, and sausage making wzs done in the kitchen. If the weather permitted,
these chores were done outdoors in the back yard.

.The home was lighted by candles which werc made in thc kitchen. There were two
ways to make candles--by dipping and melding. To dip candles several pieces of string,
preferably wool string, were tied to a stick. The stick was held over a pot of hot
nmelted tallow and lowered until the strings were submerged. Then it was lifted up
to allow the tallow that clung to the strings to stiffen. That took only a mcment,
Then it was lowered to dip the strings in over and over until the candles werce the
~desired size. Each time they were dipped they became larger. That was a simple

—method -of-malcing- candles-but-it-required-rore-timey patiencey and-back-bending than - — o

molding them. Also, more tallow was required with which to work than wes necded in
molding. For dipping, the tallow had to be as decp in the pot as the strings werce
long but a small amount of tallow could be molded into candles. I*t was melted and
poured into wool-threaded molds, allowed to sct two or threec minutes, and removed
from the mold. The molds werc rethreaded and refilled with tallow until the desired
number of candles were made or until the tallow was used up. Most of the candlemolds
used by the women of Easonville held three candles. Candle-making was an easy little
chore that no one minded #oing. VWhen the women made candles for their homes they
usually made some extra oncs for the church.

Lamps appeared in the Easonville homes in 1878. They were small and shaped like

a teacup and had a handle on one_side. They were mades of brass. They had no chimney
so theypsent up a black smoke. They also rgeked of kerosene. Ais time went on, better

and better lamps appeared. Finally, pretty lamps hung like chandeliers from the ceil-
ings of the Fasonville parlors. Leter camc Delco and carbide light plants. Then,
in 1926, the Alabama Power line was extended to Easonville,

Soap was made from fat and lye which was taken from wood ashes. Clean oak and
hickory wood ashes were saved and put in ash hopper which stood near the smokehouse.
- One kind of hopper was a barrel with holes sored ncar the bostom. It sat on a slant-

- ing shelf built against the smokchouse. The other kind of hopper was a wedge-shaped
‘wooden box built within a frame. The pointed end was at the vottom. It sat on a
slanting shelf built against the smokehouse. The pointed end was at the bottom.
Both hoppers werc kept covered to protect the ashes from the rain. The lye was takan

out of the ashes by pouring water into the hopper. As it ran through the ashes it
was caught in pails which were sct under the nopper. This preocess was called "runping
the lye down." The lye was tasted to see if it was strong enough. If it wasn't the
damp ashes were allowed to sct a few days and the lye was "run down" again. Then the
reddish ~brown lye water was added to the boiling fat. About one part fat and nine
parts lye water were used. A4 gallon of good fat was rcquired to make ten gallons of
lye soap. It was cooked in a large pot and stored in a barrel or in churns and kept
in the smokehouse.
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Usually hominy was made a day or two after soap was made. A little lye was
saved for hominy-making. Corn was put into a pot of boiling water. Then cnough lye
was added to redden the water. It boiled until the huslk loosened. Then the corn was
taken out and rubbed and washed until the husk was out of it. Then the hominy was
cooked in clean water until it was tender. Ho one used a recipe. They just "guessed"
about how much lye to use. Approximately three pints of lye were used on one gallon
of corn. The corn swelled up and made about threc gallons of hominy. That was
cnough to share with two or three neighbors who rcpaid it when they made hominy.

.Cooking was done on a huge fireplace in the kitchen. The utensils were not at
all likec those that arce used today. They included iron kettles, pots, and frying
pans. There was a Dutch oven for baking. Around 1800 small iron cook stoves, which

burncd wook, came into use in the wvalley.

Matches did not come into use until around 1888. Before that time fire was ket
in a fireplace all the time and never allowed fc go out. Vhen the fire was not need-
ed thc coals were banked in ashes to keep the fire. If a family "lost its fire"
somconc had to go to the nearcst neighbor to "borrow a coal of fire." Even after
matches came into use, bcfore they became plentiful, coals were banked and the match-
es were saved for use ot times when the fire was lost. The first matches came in a
- little long-round wooden box with a push-on wooden 1id. There were twenty-five o
matches in a box and the price was ten cents per box. One of the carly families got
its first box of matchcs and kept them thrce montks befere having tc use onesFinally,
when they lost their fire and had to strike a match, all the children gathered around
the hearth to sce the sight. The father bent over to strike the match, then straight-
ened up and said, '"Where's John? Go gebt John. He would like to sce this as same as
tye rest of youl™ So the fireworks were held up until big son John could be fetched
from the back field where he was cutting bushes.

The homes werc harder to keep clcan than the homes of today. Floors were scrub-
bed with a heavy shuck mop. Sand and lye soap werc the detergents used.

There were no refrigerators in the carly homes. The peorlec who lived near
springs put their milk and butter in containers which they set in the cold water.
Somc of the others let their milk and butter down a feow fecet into the well or cisterm.
Tt hung thére on a ropec and was drawn up & mealtime. & few other families dug 2 hole
four feet squarc and about four feet deep in a shady placc near the kitchen. They
put milk and cream in it and every day during the summer they watered the ground
around the hole %o make it cooler.

A paling ferncc was built around the yards te kecp out livestock. 0ld-fashioned
briery roscbushes, crepc myrtle, butterfly bushes, and other flowering shrubs grow
" in the yards. Also, there werc rock-bordered flower-beds in which pinks, marigolds,
hollyhocks, zinnias, prince's fecathers, and cosmos grew. .

AN AGRICULTURAL COMMUNITY

Most of the early settlers of Easonville farmed for a living. Farming continucd
to be the principal occupation of the people there until World War II. The carly
farmers of Easonville had to clear away forest to make ficlds to cultivate. They
raised cotton, .corn, wheat, peas, hay, oats, fruits, vegetables, and sorghum.
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Cotton was the main crop. The first cotton growers had to pick the seed out of their
cotton by hand. The lint was put in a cloth bag and packed with a round stick until
the bag could hold no more. Then it was tied at the top and marketed like that.
Each bag weighed approximately a hundred pounds. It was taken in wagons to Wetumpka,
the nearcst cotton market, Wetumpka was & cotton market because the river was navi-
gable up to that point and from there cotton could be transportcd by boat. Cobvten
was a precious commodity in those days and it broughta good price. Later horscdravm
cotton gins were used in the valley. The gin had two lever-like projections to which
norses were hitched. Two horses were hitched to cach of the two levers. One man ran
the gin inside and a man or a couple of boys drcve the teams outside. It took 2 long
dzy te gin two bales of cotton. A4s the 1lint came out of the gin it went into a lint-
rocm. The next day it was carried by basketfuls to the horse-drawn press and presscd
into bales: It took a day to press two bales of cotton, Onc persen ran the press
“and one person drove the horsce that pulled it. The mule was hitched te a lever which
projected from the press and ke pulled it around and around just as mules pulled the
canc mills: (The presses used in Coosa Valley werc like the one that stands in fromt
of Continental Gin in Birmingham.) The bales werc much like the bales of cotton tha
onc seccs today. They were covered with brown vagging ond bound with metal ties.
~They weighed about the -same as - the- bales-of- today. . There were three such gin and.
press outfits in this vicinity. any were on the Jones Willingham place, the dJec

Harmon place hnd ‘the old Laney place

The farmers continued to market their cotton in Wetumpka. & grouwp of them went
along togecther, forming a wagon trazin. They could take only two bales on cach wagon
becausc the roads were bad and a heavier load would have bogged dowm. The party
traveled by day and camped by night. It took a weck or cight deys to make the round
trip. Whilc in Wetumpka they bought supplies for thc ycar. Not much had to be
bought because most of the food and clothing necded by the family was raised and made
at nome. Some of the itcms that a settler's wagon brought back were a two-hundred
pounc bag of green coffee which had to be pnrchca in a pan on the fire and ground in
a coffec mill on the wall as it was necded, o barrcl of Yew Orlcans syrup, and a bar-
rel of sugar. The Ncw Orleans syrup was a treat for the scitlers. They raised sor-~
ghum cané and made syrup in the valley but it was cooked in a decp sugar kettle
(wash-pot) and it was derk and strongtasting.

Later, just prior to the Civil War, the formers found a better way to take their
cotton to Wetumpka to market it. They built flatboats and floated it down the river.
They were able to take more cotton per trip and it did not take as long to make the
trip. They made the return trip to Talladega by train since a reiliroad had been built
by that time. Wetumpka continued to be a cotton market until after the Civil Wer.
Then Talladega bccame a cotton market. From there cotton could be snlpped oy rail.
The railroad was a boon to the cotton farmers of this scction.

Some of the carly cotton gins were run by water power. There was onc at Drakets
Mill on the Coosa River. Next came gins run by a stecam engine which could gin around
twenty bales of cctton per day. Wood was cut by the cord to fire the boiler. Last
came the gins run by electricity.

The cotton growers began to sell their cotton to local buyers around the year
1895 and no longer had to market it in Talladega. Thesc buyers were usually merchants
and ginners, and after 1902, Avondale Mill bought local cotton.



When the land was cleared the topsoil was deep and not much, if any, commercial
fertilizer was used. No records of yields during the early years have been found -
but in the 1880's the yield was one-half to one bale of cotton per acre, 25 bushels
of corn, 30 to 50 bushels of oats, and 15 to 25 bushels of wheat per acre. Wheat
was not raised on a commercial scale but every farm family raiscd enough for bread.

Vheat and oats were cut with a hand-cradlc and tied into bundles by hand. As
early as 1882 thesc grams werec threshed by 2 machine run by a stecam engine., Wood
was used to fire the boiler. Two of the first steam-driven threshing machines were
owned by Mr. Bob Ewen and Mr, Bill Dunlap. They traveled from farm to farm and |
threshed for one-tenth toll. Before then horse-drawn threshing machines were used.
Peas and corn were shelled by hand until 1885, That year hand-turned corn shellers
and pea threshers were used in the vicinity cf Easonville, One of the first pea
“hreshers was owned by Mr. Milton Clinkscales. He rented it to farmers who turned
it themselves and paid one-fifteenth toll. HNot until around 1916 did a steam-driven
pea thresher comc to the community. It was owned by Mr. Dutch Cosper. He went from
farm to farm with it and threshed peas for one-eighth toll.

In addition to the field crops every farm family raised hogs, shcep, cows, geese

“~and chickens. They raised geese-for-meat; eggs and feathers.-In those days pcople . .. . ..

_slept.on feather beds. The sheep that wcre grovm_supplied wool for clothing, blan-

kets and coverlets, and candlewicks. and mutton for food. Both milk and beef cattle
were raised. The beef cattle were slaughtcred for both meat and tallow.

The families arranged their slaughtering and swapped out bcef in such a way that
they had fresh beef all along through the year. They made candles from the tallow
and they had the hides tanned a2t the local tan yards. v

There have been at Jeast two tan yards in the vicinity of Easonville., The oldest
onc was located near a pond on the old Wadsworth placc below Easonville. It was in
operation many years beforc the Civil War but was not used long after the war cnded.
The old troughs in which bark was soaked were still there in 1885 but were falling
apart. The other tan yard was located on the low place about fifty yards back of
Harmon Fraim's store. Watcr was run from the springs upon the hill down a long trough
to the tan yard. .The trough was made of 1 by 6 inch lumber. Much water was necded
because the oak bark was soaked in water to take out the tannic acid. This tan yard
was in operation in the 1880's.- There was a two-story building connected with it.

The first floor was used for the tannery and the_upstairs part was used for a cobbler
shop. . Mr. Tipton was the cobbler. He was also a preacher and he liked to talk
scrlpture to hlS customers-as he tappcd and scwed on the shocs.

Farmlng in those days ‘consisted of many chores besides planting, cultivating
and harvestlng. Wood had to be cut for fuel, new ground cleared, bushes cut from
last year's new ground, stumps pulled and cut up into kindling, cornstalks and cotton-
stalks cut or knocked down by hand, rails for fences split, and fences built and
mended. ,

The land was clearced slowly. As latec as 1885 over half of the land in Coosa
Valley was in timber. The roadsides were bezutifully wooded. Onec could not sit on
a veranda and see very far down the road because the woods cut out the view, There
was a wealth-of long-lcaf pine and also such trees as hickery, chestnut, persimmon,
ozk, and sweetgum.
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The fields that were in cultivation were fenced in to keep out the stock because
“there was no stock law in those days. The fences were made of rails. The very early
settlers made rails from chestnut wood which was durable, plentiful and easy to split.
Huge chestnut trees two feet in diameter werc found growing in abundance in the forest
when the very first settlers came, but by 1880 the supply of chestnut was so nearly
depleted that oak, pine and other easy-to-split woods were used for rails.

The family's food supply was grown at home or secured from the woods and strcans.
Besides beef, mutton, poultry, cggs, milk and butter uh ch the farm animals supplicd,
river fish and wild gamc were plentiful. As late zs 1875 wild turkeys wers in abun-
darce. In 187l ono man got nine turkeys on one hunt. After 1880 there wcre not
many wild turkeys left except in the hills and mountains,

Every family had a garden and an orchard. Too, they grow canc and made syrup.

The first cane mills had wooden rollcers. The syrup was stered in barrels and in
earthenware jugs and sealed with black and terri-cotta colored sealing wax., It was
mors difficult in thosec days tTo preserve foods for winter use. Fruit jars did not
come into use in the vallcy until 2rcund 1€87. Iost of the familics bought only onc
or two at first to cxperiment with., They paid tuenty-five cents for cack jar. In

a year or two they werc in common use for prescrving casy-to-keep fruits and vege-
tubl s but it took the homemakers many years to rcallze the full possibilitics cf the
fruit jar. '

Beforc the coming of the fruit jar apples and peaches Wcre’dried for winter use
“and appies were sulphured, To sulphur apples onc prepared them-as for-canning and -~
placed them in a wooden tub. A holc was scooped out in the center in which to sct a
saucer of burning sulphur. Then the tub was covercd with sheets for scveral hours to
held the sulphur fumes. Next the apples were put in certhenware containers, covered
with water, and put in the smokchouse. Vinegar was made from dried peclings of apples
and water sweetened with syrup. Cabbage and collards werc made into kraut and storcd
in earthenwarc crocks and in kegs. Pcas and beans were dried and put in bags. Sau-
soge was fried, placed 1n carthenware crocks, and covered with hot lard. These pre-
served foods were stored”in the smokehouse with the cured nlckory~smowed vork and the
herbs. Bunches of onions and herbs and strings of rca pepper nung from the rafters.,
There were bunches of pennyroyal and fennel to moke tea with which to trcabt colds.
There were roots of mountain fern with which to make tea to trezat certein kidney
ailments. Near the smokehousec grew 2 clump cf mullen for the treatment of cclds and
a bunch of catnip from whici: to make tea for thc baby's hives. Persimmon bark was
boiled and the tea was used for a mouthwask in casc of sorec mouth. A clump of sage
was grown for seasonlno dressing and sausage.

Broom scdge was gathored by the armloads, ticd into bundles, and stored in the
smokehouse to be made into brooms as they were nceded. The smokchouse was a storase
place for food and other neccessary commoditics and was a plage where the pork was
.curcd and smoked. . It had an earthen floor in the center of which was a firc-hole.
After the pork had been salted down for about a month it was then washed and hung
to the smokchousc rafters and a hickory wood fire was burned in the fire-hole for
four days and nights to smoke the meat,

Sweet potatocs and turnips werc stored in a hill ncar the smokchousc. The hill
was made by scooping out a saucer-shaped place about right feet in diameter. Scme’
+imbers were stood up in the center to form a veniiletor. A bed of pine straw or oat
straw was laid on the scooped-cut place. The potatoes were put on the siraw and hilled
around the ventilator. Then thcy were covered with a layer of cornstalks, a layzr

of straw and a layer of dirt. An opening was left on onc side through whizh to get
the potatoes out when nceded. The turnips werc not put in until time for frecezing

weather.
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Corn and wheat were ground at water mills, There were small mills on streams
before Drake's mill was built. Drake's Mill was constructed on the Coosa at the cxact
location where the proposed Howell Mill Shoals Dam is to be built. (The older people
who remember going to both mills to have grinding donc say that the Howell Mill was
three miles further down the river on the cld Harion Howell place which was later
sold to the Willinghams who ran a fish-trap at the 0ld Howell Mill location). Drake's
Mill was built before the Civil War and continued to operate at its original location
until 1883 or 188L. It was a huge mill made of hecavy timbers. It was three stories
nigh and it was the most powerful mill that was ever built in that vicinity. It was
certain in times of drought when the mills on small streams kad to close. In dry
scasons Drake's Mill served people as far away as Cook Springs. At one dry time just
after the Civil War Bob Ritch (1852-19L40) came all the way rrom what is now Camp
Winnataska and had milling done for his family and also for some of his neighbors at
Drake's Mill because his father's mill at the present Camp Winnataska site on Kelly's
Creoek was stopped by the drought.

At Drake's Mill there was also a sawmill and gin, after the Civil War ended it
was operated by Captain John Drake and his brother, Jim., Later it was taken over by
Dan Waitc who had married one of the Drake girls. Mr. John Shiclds was the miller
during the years that Mr. Waite owned the mill. Somctime after 1883 it was moved to

"2 location up the Easonville Branch above the old ford which, as mest pecple living- - —
there remember, was-in-the-center of the community. It was nct called Drake's Mill

after it wes moved but was called Stone's Mill or The Mill. It was owned by a group
of men including Mr. George Stone, after it was moved. From this time on, it wes
rua by steam instead of water-power. It still ground grain, sawed lumber, and ginned
cotton. Mr. Harris Hord was the miller.

THE SCHOOLS
k4
Easonville has had a school of some kind ever since cnough white people settled
there. The people who scttled at Easonville were not illiterate and they didn't
want their children to be. The very carliest schools were the subscription typc
taught in dwellings and churches. The parents paid the tcacher's salary. The very
. oldest people now living can remember their parents tcll of going to such schools,
ut they do not recall much about them. Mr. Lee Wadsworth, whc was torn in 1872,
remembers hearing his parcnts tell of going to school in the vallcy. His mother,
Sarah Lee Wadsworth, and his Lee uncles went to a school taught by Miss Eliza Hard-
wick. His father and also his Uncle Jim Owen Lec later taught. His father, William
Walker Wadsworth (18L42-1877) began teaching in the late 1860's and taught at first
in homes and churches, but later in school houses at New London and Mt. Pisgah. He
was tcaching at Mt. Pisgah.when he died in 1877. The schoothouse in which he was
teaching was 2 crude building which had been constructed in 1870, It was located on
the ridge wherc the cemetery is now. Probably, Easonville had a school building long -
before Mt. Pisgah did, but there is no one living now who knows when the. first school .
building was constructed at Easonville. The first one was located between the church
and Harmon Fraim's store. Miss Rena Roberson, who was born in 1873, started to school
there in 1879. It was not a new building then but it was a good building with a large
stage. Miss Roberson said that the people of Easonville always liked to see their
children "show off." Mr. Moore was her first teacher. The parcnts paid his salary
and he spent night in the homes of his pupils. Emma Maddox and Loula Lelils were
two of her school mates in that littlc school. Emma Maddox led them into mischicf
and the tcacher a merry chasc.
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They slipped off and went to the tan yard and on up the creek to the mill., The first
schoolhouse was not used long after 1880. & new school called Coosa Valley High
School was built wherc Preston Wadsworth's home now stands. It was a one-story build-
ing made partly of hand-hewn timber. Part of the lumber was used in the Wadsworth
home. This Coosa Valley High School stood there several years and served both Eason-
ville and Cropwell communities. Then a movement wns made to have it moved to Crop-
well. This did not materizlize, however, because Basonville ond Cropwell were always
about as friendly and helpful to each other as two Greek city-states. Besides,
Easonville alrcady had the school with Mr. I. W. Hill as its principal.

This new building was 2 largce two-story frame building, part of which is still
standing. The big auditorium vhich is still being uscdwas the first story. The
seccond story which has been torn down had two classrooms in it. Trees were set out
in rows on the campus. Mr, Hill was principal of thc school during its most success-
ful years. He had one assistant. Onc of his assistants was Mr, Jesse Willingham, a
cousin of Henry J. Willingham. Another was Wollace Houston. Later, 1890, Miss Rena
Poberson was the assistant tecacher. She had attended both the Coosa Valley High
School and this new school, which has been called by two names--Easonville academy
and Easonville High School. She owed $50.00 back tuition. In the spring of 1690

" “when shé Was seventeen years old she taught two and-a half -months-fo-finish-eut the

torm when the regular assistant resigneds She was paid $20,00 per month and she ap-
plicd it on her debt. She still has the receipt that Mr. Hill gave her. During the
following summer Miss Rena attended a femalc college in East Lake and got her diploma
at the ocnd of the summer. The following term she taught with Hr. Hill and was paid
£L,0.00 per month for 9 months. Some years later she was principal of the school.

Besides the principz} and assistant, therc was a music teacher who taught on the
stage. k ‘

Young men and womcn came from all parts of the county and from other countics
and boarded in the Easonville homes and attended the schocl. Some of the students
who attended Mr. Hill's schools were as follows: Minnio and Grover Weite, John,

Emma, and W, N. Maddox, Kirk Spradley, Dutch, Edgar, Rob and Nonnic Cosper, Ida Davis,
Margarct, John and Suc Stonc, Tom Roberts, Dan Funderburg, R. . abbott, Joe, Captain,
and Dollic Willingham, Lee Abrams, John W, Abcrcrumbic, R. L. lMcLcllan, Loula LeFils
and Jimm Walker. Mr. Hill rcmained at Easonville many years. He built a good home
across the road from the school. It is now owned by Mrs. Stella Harmon. After Mr.
Hill left Easonville he became State Superintendent of Education and later he was
National 4-H Club Leader.” ‘ -

This institution remained a high school until 1929. The last year that it had
a graduating class was 1928, Thc members of this class wcre: Lois and Lester hoyle,
Kyser Leonard, Vera Wadsworth, Wilbur Payne, Lonnic Harrison and W. R, Castlecberry.
The stone building was constructed in 1928. The school became an accredited junior
high school in 1937.

*
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THE CHURCHES

Threce churches have served the people of Easonville. They are the Mt. Pisgah
Baptist, the Easonville Methodist, and the Cocsa Valley Baptist Churches. All thesc
churches were organized before the Civil War.

The first Mt. Pisgah Church building was constructed of logs lecated on the
ridge where the present cemetery is. It was replaced by a large frame building madc
partly of hand-hewn timber. JAround 190L the present church building wns crected and
the old building was sold two or three ycars later for 20.00 to Nennan Gunter, Lee
Wadsworth and John Tucker. Some of the early familics who attended Mt. Pisgah Church
were the Smith's, Lee's, Turner's, Castlcberry's, and Eecaver's. Most of thc church-
zoing people who live at Easonville now belong to !ft. Pisgah Church.

The Easonville Lethodist Church has always stoed wherc it is now. The cemctery
was started beforc the Civil War. 4t first the building had no stceple but in 1912
it was rcmodeled and a stecple was added. Some ¢f the early members werc: L, T
Waite (1809-1869), Monima Waite (1814-1881), Joel L. Stonc (1809-1877), Susan Stonc
- (2819-1896), George W. Stonc (18L4-190L), Samucl Patton MeLellan (1£27-1895),

arzaret Morrison McLellan (1£27-1897), %William F. Lefils (1632-1912), Joka Shade

" MAadox (1835-1915), Daniel Waite (18L8-190k); Sterling Beavers—(1829=1876)5 Susan

H-zes (1816-1885), Ira Harmon (1826-1903) ond Samira Harmon, Francis H. Grisson (1830-
1202}, Charlotte Grisson (1836-?), Dr. William C. Necal (1830-1837).

At first the Easonville Methodist Churcl: wes on the circuit with Vincent ard
Harpersvillc and was served by a circuit rider who lived at onc of the charges,
usually ot Vincent. In 1883, the local church bcught the home of Tr. J. B. Kobinson
to be usced for a parsonage. - It is still the parsonzge. Jibout that time Easonville
was made a station and Eden was put on the circuit with it, Later Nepseby was added.
Narkey's Chapel, at Coal City, was put on the Ensonville Circuit in 1935, and remeined
on it a few ycars. Lawley's Chapel was added in 1951. ‘

It is possible thot Basonville Mcthodist had arsther name at first because the
community was not known as Easonville until the post office was cstablished in 1872.

: The first members of the Easonville Mcthodist Church cncourazed their slaves to
- attend church services. 4 section of the church was designated for the negrees.
Some of the slaves who died were buried in the back part of the cemctery.

Possibly, Coosa Valley Baptist Church was the oldest of_thc three churches. Onc

;;"of its carly pastors was Rev. Jesse Collins, whe had received a fine education in
" Virginia beforc coming to St. Clair County around 1815. Some of the early members

of thc church were: Willinghams, Collinses, Joncses, Wadsworths, Funderburgs, 3ells,
ibbotts, Hardwicks, Castleverrys, and Williamsons. :

During the Civil War the Coosa Valley Church building served as z schoolhousc.
School was in session when the Wilson's raiders came through. Mr. Brickhouse wcs ©
the teacher at that time and, upon hearing that the raiders were on the way, he hur-
ried the children off home. Among the children were John, Jim, and Charlic Roberson,
s>lder brothers of Miss Rena Roberson. Some of the Yankee raiders overtook the boys
ard raided their lunchk pails,
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The LEasonville Post Office
According to rccords of the Fost Officé Department, now in the custody of the

Archives and Record Service, 2 post office wns cstablished at Easonville in 1872.
Mail was brought down to it tri-weekly., HNames of postmastcrs and the dates of their
appointments nre:

Bolivar Eason -- 4April 2, 1672

Jcel L. Stone -- January 5, 1875

Holland M. Laney -- November 26, 1877

William A, Tipton -- ipril 10, 1683

Goorge R. Fardwick -~ October 2, 1886

William H, Miller -- September 15, 1898

John H. Jones -- February 15, 1902

"“Eugene"G;*LaTaste”=='October"Q;“19G5 7 e

Pearl F, Coker -- February 28, 1910
Mrs. Annic Etheridgc -- February 8, 1912
John C, Gamble -- March 1k, 192l

V Preston R. W:dsyorth‘—— august 30, 1930
Rusic L. Johnsfn -~ October 1, 1935

Mrs. Carric Cosper -- ipril 25, 1938

Justice Courts

In the 1880's and 1890's a Justice Court was held at Easonville. Squire Jehn
Davis, who lived in what is now the Roper home, was the Justice of Teace vho pre-
sided cver the last Courts held at Eansonville. He meted out punishment for Civil
offenses, but in criminal cases, the offender was bound over to the Grand Jury or to
a higher court. The Justice Court was held in the schoolhousc about once a month or

:53 more often, if necessary. ,Samuel Patton Hclellan, = local lawycr, was always on

hand during the Justice Court to defend or to prosecute,
Country Doctors

Dr. William C. Neal was the first doctor to practice medicinc at Easonville. |,
He was 2 young doctor who camc from Georgia beforc the Civil War and remained at
Easonville until his death in 1857. He boarded in the old iAbbott home where Harvey
Davis lives now. His body was buried in the Easonville cemetery by a tiny cedar
scedling which has grown to be a large tree since he was buried therec.
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‘Next came Dr. P. D. Cosper who practiced until his death in 1877. He was
followed by Dr. J. B. Robinson who remzined until 1883, He owncc what is now the
parsonaze and sold it to the church the yesr he left.

Dr. Chandler was the fourth doctor to practice at Easonville. He had a home
across the road from the old Jerry Lec place, now the Gamble heme. Dr. Chandler
was followed by Dr. Oliver Stcadham from Clay County. He died a year or two afier
coming therc and his practice was taken over by kis brother, Dr. Eobert P. Steadbam,
also from Clay County. The latter remained therc a few years then meved on to Avdhura,
He married Hiss Loula LeFils, daughter of William F, LeFils and gronddaughter of
L. F. Waite. Dr. Yere, a brother-in-law of Dr. Steacham, came ncxt. Fe ¢id not
remain at Dasonville long but moved on to New London then to Vincent.

ibout the time Dr. Vare moved Dr. R. L. McLcllan, a native of Easonville, returnad
henme from medical college and begon practicing there. That was around 1890, He
remeined until around 1919. He was succceded by Dr. B. R. Bradford from Linden. EHe
remained untii 1723 and then moved to Ragland. By that time country docters were on
tacir way owt. However, during the depression, two young doctors, Dr. Henderson ard
Bz, Arersole, practiced for a brief period cach at Easonville.

those country doctors—had their offices in their-homes:—In those-offices they -
kapt a stock of medicines, some of which came in five-gallon jugs. When they iade
calls tacy ook pills and medicines with them. If they had to prescribe something
tact wasn't in their little black bags a2 member of the family rode home witn them
ar. g7t the necessary medicine. There were no drugstores near-by in the cariy doys
of Fasonville,

Sometines they had to do surgery on a kitchen table. . Dr. HcLellan, in the 18970z,
sent patients to specia¥ists in Birmingham. He scnt one of his patients who had
cataracts to Dr. L. S. Ledbctter, an eye, car, nosc, and throat specialist wao cut
the cataracts off without bencfit of anaesthetic, charged five dollars per cataract,
an¢ let the patient recturn home alone immediately after the operation.

The Stores And Other Enterprises of Easonville

Kr, Jerry Lee and Mr. Danicl Waite had the first stores in the vicinity of
Easonville. !Mr. Lece's place of business wes located near Stemley Bridge and was a
combination liquor and grocery storc. Mr. Waite's store wes a small burildines ahout
12 by 1l fect and was located at Drake's Mill on the river. _Doth steres coid selt,
pepper, spice, brown sugar and buckshot. Mr. Lee sold liquor, in addition %o tihe
sther items, and Mr, Waite s=0ld calico and red-striped stick candy. Both cf those
stores were in operation during the 1870's, Vhen liqucr stores were voted out IMr,
Lec moved his business to the heart of Easonville, He constructed a lorge building
across the road and to the left of the G. W. Ingram home around 1880. The old
building stood until a few years ago. There he handled many wares, some of which
were as follows: buggies, wagons, horse collars, bridles, horseshocs, saddles, in-
cluding ladies'' side-saddles, dishes, spoonholders, gingham, calico, alpaca, brass
lomps, kcroscne, bulk crackers that came in a barrel, choes that came in 100 pair
1nts in a large wooden box, buckshot and gunpowder that were sold by %he pourd, aad
ow "rloans syrup which came in huge barrels,
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Next Mr. Holland Lancy built a storec a few yards from Mr. Leec's store. Neither
Mr. Lee nor Mr. Laney stayed therc long. kr. Loney moved on to Eden and operated o
business there and lir, Randel Willingham went into business in the Laney building but
did not remain long. Mr., Lee's sister-in-law, Mrs. Morgan, had a storc in the Lee
building. In the early 1880's Mr. Waitec moved his business to a location just above
the old ford on the Easonville Branch (across the branch from Harmon Fraim's store)
but later erected the building that is now occupicd by Harmon's Grocery. Later he
took his brother-in-law, W. F. LeFils, into the business and it became Waite and LeFils.
They remained togethcr for a number of years then !Mr., LeFils and his son, Jdrmand,
constructed a big yellow frame building across the road from Grant Watson's home and
went intc their owm business, LeFils and Son. Mr. Waltc then took his son~in-law
into his storc and it became Waite and Maddox., MNext he took in another son-in-law,
Mr., T. W. Z11iot, and the name was changed to Weite, Maddox and Company. After Mr.
Yaite's death in 190L it became Maddox and Elliott. :iround 1920 they sold the store
to Mr. J. K. Spradlcy who changed the name of it to Lasonville Cash Store, although
it never did 2 cash business, Mr. Spradley sold the business to Hr. T. J. Harmon in
1934, Mr, Harmon had build a storc a fow vards from Hr. Sprodley's storc around 1925,
When ho bought the Spradlcy business he had his other storc building torn down. In

_the meantime, the old Lec storc had changed hands and .bbott Brothers nad put in a
stock of goods but they later moved to the old LeFil's storc. In 1926 they moved their
~-busincss to Pell-City and the- 0ld-LeFils building-was-torn-away-to make -room-for-the— .-

highway. In 1935 another little storec was built ncar the site df the LeFils store.

It was run by Tom Watson a year or two, then Claude Wadsworth bought it and remained
in business until 19Lli, He sold it to Roper and Davis who ran the store until it
burned down in 1949, Harvey Davis built a store by his home ncar Waite's Lake in 1949,
Easonville Merchantile Store was built by Harmon Fraim and Mr. Claude Ghelston in 19ht,

Besgides the stores and the cntcrprlses already mentioned, namely: farming,
Drake's Mill, and the ta#l yard and cobbler shop, Easonville has had some dairies, a
bean mill, and a brick yard. Two of the first dairies were linot's dairy and Waite's
dairy. The brick yard was operated by Mr. Welly Spradlcy. It was a small brick
yard located in the low pasture necar Barney Ingram's home. The bean mill was located
necar the crossroads where lir, T, J. Harmon's store was built., The mill crushed
velvet and occola beans into feed,

, Pdlitics

Easonville beat has alweys had about an equal number cf Democrat and Republican
voters and a good number of independent voters. Possibly, Easonville nas a greater
percentage of independent voters than mest of the other beafs of the county. In most
general elections, until 1932, the Republicans carried the beat. From 1932 to 1952
the Democrats carried it but, in the last presidential clection the Republicans
carried the beat nearly two to one ~- 68 to 38.
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The MHost Outstanding Pcople

Dr. Henry J. Willingham -- Supcrintendent of Education (1911-191k)
Later Presicent of Florence State Teachers College

2. Dr. John W, ibercrumbic -- Lived at Fiew London but ottonded scheol at
Basonvillc., State Superintendent of Education
(1898-1902, 1920-192%L), member of Congress
and Presicdeat of University of Llertamc.
3, Dr. Issac W, Hill ———-u—mn State Superintendent cf EZducation (1903-1997)
National L-H Club Loacder. (Mot a nativ: but
a teacher and rcsident for scveral yeers).
L. Dr, Thomas Neal —-m——m—emae Preosident, Howard Collcge
(Came from Shelby county and lived in vicinity
of Easonvillc until he went awey to college),
- &, ——John-Shade Haddox ==n-=mmm Hember, House of Representatives, (State) ...
Menber, County Board of Ecucation.
6. Joscph Willingham —------- Member, County Board of Education
7. Miss Josephine Still ~---- Hissionaﬁy
8. Miss Sue Stone (Mrs. Tom Roberts) -- Tcacher, iithens College
@ . .
9, Mrs, Gladys Dycus Holcomb -Teacher, Laboratory School, Montevallo
10. Rev, Dan Funderburg ------ Baptist Minister
11. Rev. Tom Roberts ~—-—eeeee Methodist Minister
12. Rev. Harold Spradley —~---- Methodist Minister
13, James Cosper e County Tax assessor (Pcpulist Ticket)
1. Jim Box —eemmmeSteemeeeen County Tax Collector (Pgpulist Ticket)
Dr. R. L. Hclellah —----o- Physician’ _
16. Capt. John Drake —==wea-a- Captain in Confederate Army
17. Kyser Leonard ~—-e-eecmme- (Member of the 1928 graduating class 6f

Easonville High School), Representative from °
Talladega County State Legislaturc.

W
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TEE BIPHITGE X MWD ATLL3TIC (B & A) RATLRO.D

The B & A Railroad ran freom Pell City to Talladcge via Benfroe. It was built
in 1886 by the FRogers Brethers Lurbering Cemoony. Ther were engaged in cutting mil-
lions of feet of fine leng-leaf timber ond snwing it into lumber. They opcrated a
mill at Renfroc and nceded a railrond %o trousport thoir lumber to both Pell City
and Talladega. From thosc points it could be shirped on other railroads. They had -
difficulty in getliing a right-of-way throagh tho preporty of Liz YWelker. Jfter much
wrangling and bargeining with her, they finzlly made a dezl with her ~nd built thoir
roilroad, One of the things that they promiscd lor was a free ride on the train any
time she wanted to travel on it. They assumod thaot she would go to the demot %o
Loord the train, but she didn't scc any nced of going to that much troudle since the
train went near her home. Vhen she wanted to toke o 1itilc trip she sicpped out to
the roilroad track, fired her pistol to signnl the cnginecr to stop the train and he
stopped it.

ilthough the train was built primoarily to carry lumber it had a passenger car
and it carried mail. The passenger train was usually hooked on to the freight train
and went slowly. There was a depot at Cropwell ond Fr. Ben Haselett wos the depot
agente - : ' :

--—-~The B-& 4 crossed-the Coosa-River-on a bridge-ncar-Crepwell. —The bridge was - - oo

later sold to Mr. Grover Waite who had it floored and turned it inté a toll-bridge.
The State bought it from ir., Waite. ‘

The B & A Railroad was discontinued in 1918, Building it had been an expensive
undertaking which did not pay off. The Rogers Brothers Lumbering Company was forced
into bankruptcy becouse of it ’

¥ -  Vera Vadsworth

LATHRIP'S RAILRO.LD

Possibly Lathrip's Railroad was the shortest lived railroad to span St. Clair
County territory. It was built in 1907 and discontinued in 1911, It was built by
Lathrip and Hatton Lumber Company for the purposc of moving logs from Kendrick's
mill on Kelley's Creek in Shelby County to Pcll City and it connected those two
points. Lathrip and Hatton had a lumber mill at Riverside. They bought a lot of
timber at Kendrick's mill which had to be cut down and hauled to their Riverside
mill to be sawed into lumber. The Lathrip's Railroad ran sduthword from Pell City,
crossed the old Trussville road two miles west of Eosonville, continued southward
and crossed what is now highway 25 at the Pierce Lec home two miles cast of New
London, and ran on southwerd five miles to Kendrick's mill. ‘

ifter the timber was cut the reilroad was discontinued. The rails were ripped
up and sold for scrap and the ties were sold to farmers who used them in making
fence posts. 4 Mr, Vhittle, who was the foreman, built a home out of boxcars near
the tracks about two miles cast of Easenville and lived there for fifteen years.

Vera thsworth
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THE HISTORY OF HOODY

‘In the eariy 1820's, during the administration of James Monroe, a section of
land in township seventeen was granted to Epps Moody. Mr. tloody noved with his
family from North Carolina and settled on the land. He built a log cabin to live ing
The cabin had a chimney made of hand made bricks. They were moulded by hand from
clay dug from a nearby field. They were baked by an open fire. Later, in 18L&, the
long housebwas torn down from around the chimney and the present home of the J. W.
YMoody family was built. The old brick chimney is still standing and is still in use.

Soon after the Lpps Moody family settled on their land other people ceme. Some

of the other early settlers were the Moores, Kirks, Kerrs, Lamberts, Hawkinses,

- Spruiells, Fulmers, Taylors and Adkinses, Wagon trails were soon beaten out in four .

“directions across the settlement. "They crossed at a ﬁolnt a quarter of a mile from
the Moody home and the eommunity soon became known as Moody's Cross Roads,

The people who settled Moody were hard—working people who did their own work.
There were no slave-owners at Moody. When the South seceded from the Union and‘the
Civil War was fought, it¥is said, Mbody>coﬁmuniﬁj,-1ike Winston County, was pro-
Union in sympathy. Most of the men who went from Moody to the Confederate Afmy did
so sorely against their will because they felt that it was a "rich man's war." At
least one of them deserted and went over to the Unlon forces. However, bne Moody
man, Captaln Riley Hoody, son of Epps Moody, served the Confederate Army valiently,
although the Moody famlly never owned a slave and was staunchly Republlcan.

The first church to be organlzed at Moody was the Rock Springs Baptist church.
It was organized in 1882 and it was located at Rock Spr1ngs, about a mile west of the
site of the present Baptist church. John Harris was the first pastor. There were
approximately fifty members. )

In 1886 the Methodist Church was organized. It was called the Hopewell Metho- -

dist Church and the building was located a mile north of the present church site,
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Because the Moody Methodists were not of 2 slave-cwning class and had felt no sympa-
thy for the secessionist from the Union nor the Methodist secessionists from the main
lethodist Episcopal Church, they preferred to be a part of the main Methodist Zpisco-
pal Church instead of the MHethodist Episcopal Church, South. Other churches on the
Hopewell charge werc as follows: Lawleyr's Chapel, Pope's Chapel, Poplar Grove and
Antioch. The first ycar, 1886, the pastor was paid no salary.' He traveled 365 miles,
visited 53 homes, precached 1l sermons, and turned one member out of the church. His
traveling expenses amounted to $3.80. - The members of the churches on the charge
contributed $2.75 toward the traveling expenses.

The sccond year, 1887, the pastof was paid $10.70. The third year, 1888, the
pastor was paid $35.75 and the Presiding Elder was paid §5.05.

In 1889 the pastor's salary was y62-80. That'YGar”hiswaﬁhﬁalwréportwwas as o

”follows:
"Number of Sunday Schools —3, Average attendance — 65, preached 15 times,

received L0 new members, turned out two, christened two infants and chastised the

members a number of times,® )
# D Signed, W. M., Green, Pastor

In 1890 the pastor's salary, for the first time was pledged. Two hundred dollars
was pramised to the pastor and twenty dollars to the presiding Elder. T. J. McCain
;as the pastor that year. . ‘ ‘

In 1909 the pastor‘s salary vas ra:x.sea to §210, The Moody church paid 150
~ of that amount.,,In_l916 the pastor!? své;iary‘was raised 5673300 a year,

In the meantlme the church bulldlng had been moved to tAe site of the Moody
cemetery.‘ A few years 1ater it was moved to its present locatlon. A large frame
building was constructed there and was used until 1947 when the present brick church

was erected. A stone parsonage was built in 1935. The present Moody charge is made

up of Moody, Cdenville, and Ebenezzar Churches. The yearly salary for the pastor



L7

In 1879 Moody had iﬁs first schocl. It was taught in a log house which stood
wﬁere the Methodist parsonage now stands, The schcol building was heated by an open
fire which burned in a huge fircplace.. The pupils sat on long benches made by split-
ting a log in halves and driving four pegs in each half for legs. The Blueback
Speller was the only textbook used in the first school. The first teacher was George
Sherbitt; There were about fifty "scholars.” The sccond year, 1880, William Bynum
was the teacher, .

After a time the school was moved to a site near the G. W. Hannon home. In 1929
it was moved to its present location. At that time the main stone building, 2 home-

ec building and a manual training ship were built. Mr. M, }M, Woodham wa the first

principal. In 192k, when the 6-3-3 plan was adopted loody School became Moody Junior

__Figh School. In 1928 it was one of the two model Junior High Schools in the state.

In 1936 the auditorium was built. {Thé lunchroom was added in 1948,

Politically, Moody was once alRepuBlican stronghold but, as the years passed,-
more Democrats moved into the community and now the beat is carried by the Democratic
Party., ¥

Moody community has produced some successful men and women. Possibly, Mr, Ellis
Moody, great-grandscn of Epps ﬁoody, and Mr, Curtis Adkins afe the most outstanding
men who hava gone out froﬁ Hoody community. Mr. Moody was Superintendent of Education
in St.. Clair é;ﬁhty“from 1930 to 193&; ﬁr. Aékiné served one term as Tax Collector

and one term as Probate Judge of St. Clair County.

-

Vera Wadswvorth, : -
Second Grade Teachcr,

Moody School .
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THZ CEURCHZES

At first the people of IHoody had no church to go to. Somctimes visiting
preachers came to loody and preached in somconc!s home. In 1882 the Rock Srrings
Baptist Cmweh was built. Four jears later the Methodist church was organizcd. It
was called the Fopewcll Hethodist.

The pastor preached for nothing the first year. Lc was paid §12.70 the sccond
year.
Brenda Drake

IDODY'S EOMOR ROLL

Fany good and useful men and women have growm up. in Hoody. We arc proud of
them all.  Some of them werc outstanding. lioody is proud of Cantain Riley Moody who
served in the Civil Wer. lir. Zllis loody was superintendent of Education of St.
Clair County. Ilr. Curtis Ackins was Probate Judge of St. Clair County.

Juanita Haycs

London was scttled in the carly part of the cightecn century by a groun of
people looking for a place to scttle. This scemed a good placc because of two streams
of water and grazing for their stock and cattle. For a while the place did not have
a namc. Later a very wealtlky Indian Chief care by and stopped a while. His name
was Too Kelly. ' The pcoplc liked hin very much and to honor him thoy named the two
strcams for him, onc Kelly's Creck and the other Toc River. Today they arc still
lmown by thesc names. Toz River, a small creck, runs through London and Kelly's
Creck is about three miles South of London. London's real name was Kelly's Creck,
lator wes niclmamed London,

Onc of the first scttlers was Mr. Howard Castlcberry who owned all the land from
Bcll Mountain to Sholby County Linec. The Blankenship home, now owned by Wilmer Hoyle R
is the oldost house in London now standing. It is a hundred years old. It was
originally a one room building. The kiichon is the original Kelly's Creck post office.

The first store was owned by Mr. Corbett, an Irishman. A4t one time there were
two stores and a saloon. The grocery was called a saloon and was owmed by Mr.
Abercrombie whoso son later became our state superintendent of cducation. The
- Abcrcrombio home still stands today. It is owned and occupicd by Mr. and iMrs. J. P.
" Sims. For a number of years there was only onc storec, how therc are two stores. One
is owned and opcrated by lr. J. C. Justico and son. The othor is operated by Hr,
Charles Williams and fathcr.

Therc was never a church in the community as there was Mt. Pisgah Missionary
Baptist Church two miles North, and Macedonia Missionary Baptist Church about throc
“.iiles South. In 1948 a small group of pcoplec of the "isscmbly of God Church" pur-
chascd land and built a little church across the highway from the stores. Scveral
times Sunday school and revivals have been held in the school housc. Mr. Hendricks,
the oldest preacher in St. Clair County, once lived in London. :
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The first post office at London was called Kelly's Creck Post Office and the
first postmistress was Mrs. Rena Inzer. Mail was reccived daily. Mr. Poe carried
the mail from Pell City to Harpcrsviile en 2z "Sulky", a two-whcel cart drawn by a
horse. He went to Harpersville one day and back the next day. About 1905 a rural
route from Vinccnt was begun and this cut out Xelly's Creck Post Office. Mr. Robert
Fulenwider was the first postman scrving two ¥cars. ¥Mr. Tom Lackey was the sccond
postman scrving cightcen years. How Ixr. Walter Raily is the third serving since 1925.

The first school was on the Wolf Creck Road about onc mile Horthwcst of where
the present building now stands. The school was moved scven times before it ceme
to rest where it now is, just off Highway 25, ncar the feot of Bell Mountain., At
first the school was a onc-room building with one tecacher. But the children kept
coming in and a room was added until therce were throe rooms, three tcachers, and
ninec grades.

The present building is an attractive rock building. It was constructed in the
carly 1920's. Mr. Carl Q. Baxtier was county supcrintcndent. ifter a fow years, the
‘children grow up, marriced and moved away, leaving only the older people here., No
more people moved in, so in 1943 the school again becamc a onc-teacher school with
four grades. In 19L9 the fow remaining pupils and teacher were moved to Easonville
Junior High School: The county still owms the rock building. It has been said
that the best school at London was taught by Mr. Carl . Baxter who later became an

outstanding supcrintendent of education in S5t, Clair County.

At one time there was a gin and sawmill in London, owncd and opcrated by Mr,
Will and Sam Smith. Mr, Sam Smith still lives in London and the sawmill is operated
by his son, Martin Smith. The gin ceased to operate in the carly 1940's,

Therc was also a blacksmith shop and grist mill here, Ncar the blacksmith shop
stood a big mulberry tree which was known as thc "gossip trce." "It was the favorite
hang out for thc men of the cormmunity, The blacksmith shop has not been in operation
for approximatcly ten ycars.

In 1924 there was grecat cxcitoment in tho little community. Some men came
through trying to buy all the mincral rights telling the pcople that oil had been
discovered near London. The people thought thcy would get rich quick., They soon
found out it was all a trick and scttled down to their quiet farm life again. '

Fér several years survcyors have been doing some work in connection with the
proposed dam to be built on the Coosa River, about threce miles East of London.

In 1938 Highway 25 was built through London. Later this road was paved.

About 1940 or 1941 the R.E.A, brought electric lights to London, MNow tha people
of London have the modern conveniences such as refrigeration, water pumps, radiocs,
and television,

Mrs. Ameclia Warren is the oldest person still living in London. She is approxi-
mately ninety years of age. She has becen an invalid about three ycars. She is still
a very intercsting person to talk to, )

Mrs. Mac L. Blankenshiz



50

YOODY'S CROSS ROADS

Our government at Washington wanted pecple to come here to live. It wanted
them to build homes and make farms. Our goverament gave the land to people who came
and livea on it.

Mr. Epps Moody was the first white man to bring his family here. He care from
liorth Carolina and settled on his land accut 130 years ago. He built a loz cabin
_7or his family. Fe made the bricks for the chimney by hand. He made them out of
2lay which he dug from his field. Ee baked them in an open fire to make them hLard.
trat chimney is still being used. It is one of the chimneys at Fred Hoody'<s home.

Judy Sirms

THE CEOSSHOADS
Soon after the Moody family came, other families came. They were the Hawkinses,
- Hoores, Kerrs, Lamberts, Fulmers and Adkinses, ~Thay ouilt Homes and started Ffarms.

Soon two wagon trails were beaten out across the settlement. They crossed at
a point near Mr. lioody's home. Soon the peoplc began to call the commnity Moody's
Crossroads. :

Flossie Dawson

#  THE EARLY MOODY HOMES

The early settlers of loody lived in log cabins. Some of them had two large
rooms and a lean~to. Some of them had two large rooms with an open hall between them.
Some of them had a kitchen built separate from the main part of the home. Much of
the furniture was made by hand. Few homes had glass windows. Most of them had wooden
shutters.

Margie Bradford

-

THE FIRST SCHOOL

IN 1879 the people had their first school. It was taught in a log house. It
was heated by an open fire which burned in a big fireplace. There were about fifty
scholars. They sat on log benches. There was only one teacher. Mr. George Sherbitt
was thé first teacher. Tke parents paid the teacher's salary. The first school
lasted two months.

Evelyn Ash
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MARGIRET, .CHR, WHITE'S CHLPEL

The history of the development of Hargarct, icmar, and White's Chapel is simply
the history of the development of ilabama Fucl arnd Tron Ceriprny in St. Clair County.

ilabama Puel and Iron Company was orgenized in 1905 by Col. Henry F. .
DoBardelcben and was then known as Alabama Fucl and Stcel Company. Colonel DeBarde- -
lcben, was the grandson of Danicl Pratt, a pioncer dcveloper of Iron furnaces in
;labama. The city of Prattville was numed for Donicl Pratt.

Tn 1908 ilabama Fucl and- Stecl Company was reorganized by Coloncl DeBardeleben,

with capital from the Colgate, Hacy and other New York intercsts, and was thereafter
knowm as Alabama Fucl and Iron Company.

Tt was in 1908 that Margarct was built to provide homes for thosc men who were
to manage and operate thc mincs and who were to dig the coal. The village was nemed
for Mrs. Charles F. DeBardelcben, whosc husband, the son of Coloncl Henry DeBardcle-
ben, was vice-president of the new company.

-  hemar was built for similar reasons to thosc givon for the building of Margarct
__and just a short time later. It derived its namc from the first syllable of licton,

a mining village the'company owncd and operated in Shelby County, and the first—

syllablc of Hargarct, Ac-mar,
It was at Acmar;that the company built its central power and washer plants.

White's Chapel developed along with Margaret and JAcmar as employees of Alabama
Fucl and Iron Company built privatc homes in that community. Employces of the
Central of Georgia Railgoad, who opcrated the branch line of that company to serve
the mines at Margaret and jicmar, also built private homes in this area. i

For a2 number of jcars the mines in these arcas produced an annual output of one
 million tons of coal. Therc was never any work stoppege caused by labor difficulties.

The development of Diescl locomotives and the incrcased use of natural gas so
‘curtailed the use of steam coal that in November 1950, slabama Fucl and Iron Company
closcd its mines ond set out to liquidate all its asscts.

By €. C. Garrison
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The History of Odenville

Indians were the first people to live where the presenf.village of Odenville is
located., Game was plentiful, good springs were numerous, and the land was fertile.
A1]l these things attracted the pecople of the northeast as they migrated westward, so
many of them stopped along the way. They formed our prescnt village.

The earliest settlers in the order in which they scttled were: Peter Hardin,
the father of W. C. Hardin, and grandfather of Mrs. Nell Hardin Hodges, present resi-
dent of Odenville. He came in 1821 and settled in the old field southeast of the
present site of Odenville, near the Shockley home at the foot of the mountain. In

1824 he moved to a2 new homc where W. J. Hodges now lives, A Mr, Lowell scttled where

_ the Ben Vandergrift home is. A Mr. Lovet camc to dwell about where the Moorc home is

today. A Mr. Mize built a beautiful large brick home ncar what is called now Liberty,
northeast of O@chille on the Ashville-Odcnville Road. It still stands today, and
is supposed to be the oldest in the entire county. A Mr. Harman then settled about
where the Coursens now gdive. Johnnie Vandergrift settled on a farm at the foot of
the mountain where Hill's farm is toda}. Billy Foreman scttled on the Branchville-
Odenville Road near wherc the Spark's hbme now stands. Johnny Mize scttled where
Garfield Stced now lives.

Odenville was first knowsas Hardin's Shope, named for Peter Hardin, but later
it was changed.to>thc preScnt name at the suggestion of Mr. Brown, a;mail‘carricr of
that day. - : B ‘ .- |

Histérical Facts : | -
The Qross Roads in Odenville werc devcloped along old Indian»and gamo tréils.

The first form of industry was the lower mill on Canoc Creck, over a hundred ycars

AZ Cre
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The old brick Mizc hore in this cormunity is approximatcly onc hundred thiry-eight
yecars old.
Odenville's first Post Office was located in Mr, Bob Newton's hore.
He still has the table used for soréing the moil,
Mory Simpson naned the new Poat Office.
The first freight train come through Odenville in 1905. The rails werc laid along

in front of the train as it roved slowly along the new track.

The St. Clair County News was edited in Cdenville for two ycars by J. L. Maddox.
The first odition is reported to have been on white silk.
The first public school was taught in a little log building at Walnut Grove.

© St. Clair County High locatcd'in'Odenville;“is;ane;of“ihéinvé;éldcstwin~th0”state

‘of Alabama,

) Schools In Odenville

Tho first;public school in the Odenvillc ¢omrunity was Walnut Grove, locatod
at Hardwick, four niles éist of Odenville. It had only one teachef, but was considercd
o very prosperbus school for that tire,

As the population increased and shifted it was decided that a botter location
for the school would be a£ Liberty, onc rile east of Odonvilie, on the Ashville-
Leeds réad. The little village of Odenville, grew untiilit had a small school of
its own. Thaﬁ was soncthing like 68 years ago, we are told by thc old settlers, The
school was 2 small one-roon log structure; heated by an opén‘}irc placo at ono eond
of the roon. it stood somewherc aboﬁt where thé hore of Mr. anbr Byers néw is,
So far as we know, only four of its pupils are still living. Thcy arc Louis Mizc,
Ermn Mize, Jonic Philips, and Isabella Scoggins. Mr. ¥in Hardin was onc of the first
toachers,

As the population of Odenville grew it was decided to unite the school af Liborty

and the onc at Odenville,
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A now buillding was built on the same picee of ground on which the present school
stands, but at a differcnt site., This was built with state nid and becanc a nodern
stato public school of that day. It was a two story wood structurc with several rooms.
Misfortune cane upon this building and it whs burmed to the ground about fiftcen
years ago. The patrons were not to be outdonc in their desirc to educate their
children. With the nid of the state they soon began the new building to replacc the
former, It was of ficld stone and built according to the newest state plon, 2 one
story building with three regular class rooms, two of which could be thrown together
to use as an auditoriunm, and other nceded storage and clock rcoms, This one is still

in use,

‘High School

In 1967 the stote legislature passod a bill providing for the establishrent of
a county high school in eaéh of the counties of thc state., St. Clair County was
one of thé’first fivo countics to take advantate of this offer, In July 1908 the
ground was cleaned off for the crection of the prescnt high school building. Mr,

John Inzer -was head of the erecting cormitteo, whieh consisted of:

W. T. Brown J. L. Maddox
H. H. Letaw | : V. T. Hodges
',P;'A; Glenn o '_ S. M. Mize
W, C;miHhrdih | o " S. M, Curnings

The school opened in the fall of 1908 with L. K. Bonson-ns principal and Miss
Minnié HSOQall éétstant. it hﬁd an cﬁfdiinent of twenty-six, Since it was a neow
school, only onc year of high school work was done that yenr,

Iﬁ the second year the enrollment had increcsed to sixty-two, forty in the first
year ond twenty-two in the second year. These corrcesponded to the cighth and ninth
grodes of today, for the state then used what wns ealled the 7--4 plan--seven yoors

in elenmentary school and four in high school,
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Every pupil was required tc toke either Latin or German in the first yeor. In
addition he took English, mothemrtics, English history, phisical gecogzephy, nanual
trainine, and scometrical drawingz, 2 totsl of seven subjects. |

In the sccond yenr the pupil took Latin, German or ormericiol Georraphy and
Enclish, Algebra and Plane Geonetry, ancient bistory, Biology and nonual troining,

In the third year he took English, nnthematics, medieval ond modern history, md
two clectives chosen from the following subjects: physics,Home Econcnies, Ciccro
and Lotin prose cemposition, French, German or Bookkeeping and Cornercinl Geoeraphy.

In thc fourth year hc took English, Mathematics, U. S. History and Civics,
Alabana History and two clectives from Chenistry, Pesatical Ar-rviculture, Virgil cmd
Lotin grammar, French, Gernon, Bookkeeping and Comnercinl Law,

Thgre is quitc a difference in this coursc of study of meny subjects taught o

fow ninutes o day on curtain days a week and the fcﬁcf subjccts of today ;ﬁich
are taﬁght fron forty-five to nincty minutes a day in our present systen.

Thé school had the distinction of being the only high school in the state
requiring its studcntsigo wear uniforms,

By the third yeor of thc school it wns able to publish an announcement of its
sessioﬁ beginning Scptember 12, 1910. Scveral of these mzy be found ~mong the

patrons of the school today.

The Vocational school was built in 1925 providing instructions fcr boys in
vocational agriculture and for girls in vocational hore econonics. This work has
been carried on by Mr. ﬁ&ghes and Mr. Ellis, Vocational Agriculturc teachers, and
Misses Willians, Martin, framncll and Wooley, Hone Econonics teachers. .

In the spring of 1946 some land waspurchased froo Mrs. Augusta Tayldr. The
school paid $100.00 on it and the rcmainder was paid by the County Board of Educgtion.
On this land a lunch roon was erected that surmer. The patrons of the school, wvith
+he aid of the County Board of Education, erected the building. One class rcon

was added to the lunchroon. Before the new building was crected, the lunchroon was
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housed in the rooms under the auditorium. When the lunchroon was noved, the 5th end
6th grades were moved into the rooms vacated by the lunchroom. The 4th grade moved
into the new room adjoining the lunchroom, At this tine the pupils from Branchville
were transported to Odenville. The school at Branchville burncd the latter part

of December, 1944. Until enough room was made for them at Odenville, part of the
pupils attended school at Moody.

The Low Gap Elementary School burned February 13, 1946. The tcachers finished
that year's work in the Low Gap Church. During the surmer three additional class
roons werc built at Odenville on the high school campus. That fall the 3rd grade
at Odenvillc and all the pupils fron Low Gap werc transferred to the high school

campus. Only the first and second gradcs remain in the Odenville Elerentary

'“Bulldlng.

The Frierndship School closed at the end of the 1948-49 term. That fall those

pupils were transferrcd to Odenville. All grades frono the 3rd through the 12th arc
now oh the high school carpus.
The Hare property whlch adjecins the school canpuswas purchased by -the County

Board of Education in 1946 as part of the Odenville school campus,

. The History of Odenville
By The Commereial Art Class 1932
: Misé‘ﬂary Edith Spiegel, Teacher
Information for period since 1932

by Miss Nancy Wilson, Prineipal
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8336 Third Avenue South
Birpingharn, Alabara

October 15, 1932

Miss Flvie Lou Alverson
Cdenville, Alabana

Dear Miss Alverson:

Your letter, asking for historical information regarding the
Odenville Presbyterian Church, recc1ved In replying, I wish to state that
I an not sure when the church was organized, PBut I thirk it was crganizcd
about 1885 or 1889 as a Cunberland Presbytcrian Church at Liberty. Rev,
Thornie Taylor was one of the first, if not the first ninister of the church;
I rather think hc organizcd the church,

Anong the early moubcrs of the congregation werc ncnbers by
the nancs of Stovall, Mize, Hurst, Simpson, Steed, and Ash.

In the Consurmation of the Union of the Cumberland Presbyterian
and Presbyterian U. S. A, in 1906, a part of the Liberty Congregation declined
to go into the United Presbyterian Church and retainced the nanc of Cunberland
Prosbyterian, But the pastor and sessicn of the church, with alarge part -

- of the mcobership of-the Liberty Congregation,..abiding the decision of the
Gencral Asscmbly of the Cumberland Presbyterian (or majority of the Cumberland
Presbyterian Church) latcr became the congregation of the Odenville Presbytcrlan
Church,

In July of 1912 the Session of the Odenville Presbyterian Church
appointed o committcc consisting of  the Pastor, Rev, J. M. Alexander, and
elders -~ J. A, Mize, and S. M. Cunnings - to select a lot fotr the church
building. This cormittde sclected and purchased the lot on which the church
stands. The lot wes purchased from M, Wat Prown, of the Odenville Land
Company, for the consideration of §125,00; contract fof the hew church building
was let the next year and noncy raised and the church building erected,

The deed to the property was made to the trustecs of the
Gencral Assembly of the Presbyterian Church, U. S. A. Messers L, Mi Mize,
S. G. Hurst, and J. A, Stovall are the trustecs of the local congregation
and custodians of the propertys They are also the present olders of the
local church¢ '

The prescnt-membership of the Odenville Church is 42. The
church has, during the last fifteen years, lost quitc a fewmenbers through
dcaths and removals fron this comrmunity.

Ministers whc have served this congregation during the past:
thirty-five years arc: Revs. J. B. Stovall, S. L. Robinson, S. G. McClunecy,
H. S. Helment, Rl Pl Taylor, and J, M. Alexandcr, and anong the elders of
this congregation who served faithfully and worthly, now dcccased, wore
S. M, Cunminps, Jd. A, Mize, Dr..C. AL Gason, J. W, Jones, and J. W. Stovell,

J. M. Aexander, Pastor
Odenville Presbyterian Chureh



58
October 29, 1932

Miss Frances Marcrun
Route 2
Odenville, Alabama

My dear Miss Maorcrum:

The only record I can find giving data on St. Clair County
High School is a copy of thc "Anncunccrent® for the "Third Annual
Session, Beginning September 12, 1910, and ending Mey 26, 1911."

This announcencnt is in the Department of Archives and History
and contains amonsg other things the following:

"Board of Control
High School Conmission

Hls Exccllency, Braxton Bragg Cormer, Governmer, o
‘Harry C. Gunncls; -Saperintcendent -of-Education o
_Willien W, Brandon, State fuditer

County Board of Education

B. F. Harmond, Superintcndcnt cof Educaticn
Napoleon P, Spradlcy, John W, Moore,
Elijah T. Turner, Willian F, Maynor

Megle H{ Snith, Treasurer,®

7 Faculty"

Janes Olin Sturdivant, A. M., Principal

Miss Ada Barncs, First Assistant

Mrg. Alma Yerarkey Robertson, Sccond iAssistant
Mrs, C. C, Brown, Music, Expresaion, hrt "

. "This school has the distinction of being the only county
school in the State wearing uniforns--One society, The W. T. Brown
Literary Society, with prospects of others.”

"Board" v -

Board may be obtained at froo $10.00 to $12.00 per nonth.
Students may rent rocns and do their own esoking, thereby reduoting
the cost, Sone report that becard in this way coat fron 32,00 to $5.00
per ponth,"
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Miss Frances Marcruo

October 29, 1932
Page 2

"Roster of Pupils

1908-1909 -~ First Year

Buscy, John T.
Buscy, Thomas J, Jr,.
Cuming, Sada B.
Davis, Clarcncc L.
Fernan, Mae E.
Ferpan, Cary- .
Fowler, Henry A,
George, Alta
George, Ross

Hagin, Jancs A,
Hodees, Hicks
~Hardin, Russell Jr.

Hurst, Virgil L.
Jones, Howard V.
Jépcs, ‘Cheater 4.
Mize, frthur Clarence
Mize, Bert

Newton, Dovie E,
Robertson, George W,
Scoggins, Moary E,
Shocklecy, Namnnie E,
Tucker, Jas., T.

Wood, fddie L
Vanderpgrift, Benj. F. .

Hardin, Nellie H. Jones, Lottic M.

Apparently there was cnly one year of high school uork the first year.
There is a roster for 1909-1910 containing 40 nancs, "First
Year," and 12 names in "Second Year."

The courscs of study is sct down as fomr years beginning with
the 8th grade. At that tine the state had what was called the 7-4
plan; that is, seven yegis of clenentary school and four years of high scheol.

The coursc of study is given by years. Every pupil was
required to take either Latin or German in the first year and in the
sccond year, English, algebra and plane seonetry, ancient history, biology,
and panual training. ‘

G In the third year the pupil tock English, methematics,
rnedieval and p~dern history. He night elect ¥wo subjects fron. the composition,
- Greck, French, Gerpan, or bookkceping and comerciel geography.

In the fourth year the pupil toock English, mathenatics,
United States History and civics and Alabama History and two clectives
fron the folowing: Chenistry, practical agriculture, Virgil 6 bocks, (Latin)
~rarmar, Xenophon's Ana basis, Fronch, German, bookkecping and cormercial law.
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Miss Frances Marcrun
Octecber 29, 1932
Pare 3,

This "announcencnt" contains a nunber of interesting pictures,
cne showing the building and students line up-boys along the frent in military
costunes and the girls along the right side (as the building faces) in some-
what nilitary-looking uniforns with caps rcsepbling the caps used with gradua-
ting ("ceps and gowns") costunes. Another picturc shows thc students body and
faculty cn and in front of the front steps of the building, In enother picturc
ontitled "™Raglands Representatives at St, Clair High Schecl" arc shown six
yound ladies and, seven young nmen, 2ll in the incvitable "uniforms, !

Five pages of advertisancnts arc carricd on the pages fellowing the
announcerents absut the scheel,  4pealing for patronage for through this riediun
were:  Judson College: Edw, Kerah fAgency, Racland: Biruinghan Trust and
Savinz Ccopany: Hirshberg Art Company, Baltinmorec: Dr. i, W. Dupey: St. Clair
Ccunty News; Steed and George: W. C. Watson; J. L. Mize and Sen; C. P, Ward;
llabama Polytcchnic Institue; St, Clair Motor Car Corpeny; Cock Springs,

(Studebaker, Flanders and E. M, F, cars) J. M, Willians-n and Scn: B, E, Wing:

Bank of ‘Odenville; W, L. Steed, ~

Mr, H, A. Fowler, who was a pupil in the carly deys, is now principal
of Choctaw County Hich School at Butler, ilabara, Mr. W. F. Mayor, who was cn
the County Board cf Education, is niw prineipal of the Blcunt Ccunty High
Schcol at Onconta. No doubt these gentlencn could Five ycu scnc facts that
would be helpful,

There is here in the Departnent of Archives and History a cepy
cach of two comencencntypreprans for May, 1916, Onc is for the Oraterical
Centest on May 9th. Some of the titles of the crations and the nancs of the
orators were as follows:

"The fnerican Flag", Ten Riddle; "Bcheld a Republie, " Coy Anberson:
"Linccln, A Man Called of God," Recuben Self; "The Confederatc Flag." Vernon
Vandergrift: "The Daughtor of the Regiment," Gussic. Cox, ~

i On'Wbdnesday May 10th a play, "The Mistross of St. Ives" in threce
acts was presented, . : L

No doubt other mterials could be fcund in the Deportnent of Archives
and History if sone one c-uld take tine to investicate all of the available
sources, SRR - '

-

You are working on an interesting tepie, and I trust ycu will be
able tc do a fine job of it., If we can help ycu in any way, please write
tc us acain.

This is in answer to your request under datc of October 16th. I
rogret that I was unable to give it carlier attention.

Very truly yours,
T. W, Soith

Superviscr of Seccndary Educaticn
Montgenery, Alabama
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THE HISTCRY OF ASHVILLE

01d towns never die, they just fade away. This popular
phrase coined by a famous general suits well the town of Ash-
ville. It has slowly faded, but will probably never die.
People who love life in a small town will always keep Ash-
ville alive as a peaceful'southern town. More than likely
they will never try to turn Ashville into a big, booming,
industrial center. They will probably be content with Ash-

ville as it is--peaceful, truly Southern and very much the old

"1mfwhcmeﬁbwh;“ﬁhéfé"ﬁ6fﬁih§”dhéﬁéésW55m555“§éé££”é6'B}I I feel

that the reason for Ashville being stillva small town today
is seen aé we study the history of the town.

The settlers of the territory surrounding Ashville were
peaceful peopleé They came seseking land on which to establish
their homes. They came to settle on small plots of land and to
become permanent fixtures in the community. Apparently none of
the first early white settlers had any great plans for owning
8 vast amount of property. Every man seemed to be on equal
;ﬁﬁnding with the rest. | | |

' “”These,first-settlers fopnd many things of interest in
this new territory--Spanish coins, Indians and their civil-
izétion, fruitful land, etc.--all helping to tell them some-
thing of the history of the land they were making their home.

The Spanish coins and other Spanish articles sometimes

found on our soll are the remainders of De Soto's trip through
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the territory. 'His famous march took him nearby and he sent
out from his main body, during stops over and camp periods,
small foraging bands and scouting parties, and these are the
ones who first found their way into St. Clair County. Some
ill—tréated by the Indians, others took siék in the county and
vwere given the best medical treatment then practiced anong the
Indians, a decoction of herbs érepared by their "Medicine Men."
It was these Spaaish and Portuguese who left the Spanish coins
hére. It was the descendants of these white men who left the
traces of Spanisn blood here for years. It is possible that

the man, Biddy, of Portuguese extraction, who was hanged with

’wfi;;>5£ﬂé;;végmﬁéallows Hiil” aboverkshvilie in 1829 (300 yé;rs
after De Soto's visit) for a number of murders, was descendant
of the ill-fated adventurous followers of De Soto.l

Indians whgmlived in villages out of Ashville'were found
by De Soto's men%to be a large and powerful tribe known as the
Creeks in later days. There wzs quite a number of Cherokees,
also. Although this area was claimed by the English from 176l
. and for4seV§ral years after, it was.reallyvin complete possession - .
of the Indians. . -
In 1794-5 the county of St. Clair was sold as a part of the

—

k"beorgia Company" .of the Great Yazoo Land Sales by the Georgia

-~

1. William H. Cather, History of St. Clair County, .
Clipping File, Department of Archives and History,
Montgomery.




63

legislature. _Thoggh these sales were later declared null and
void, the tendency was to cause an influx of settlers into
the settlers to the section. These settlers came to occupy.
the lands granted them by the GeorgiavCompany and remained
here. W%ith this rush of settlers to the territory, naturally
the Iﬁdians began to lose ground, and to become rebellious
toward the wihite settler.

Planters had no worry about the beautiful and bountiful
land. #1ld fruit wes plentiful in those days, and nere and

_there arcund Ashville were several pcach orchards, planted oy

‘"theWIndians:M”Onewof“theseworchardSWwa3wonwthewhi1;wﬁust~southu~w
of Cobb's Spring. Another was in the fieid some distance horth-
west of Hon. James G. Greene's residence.t |

The Indians exhibited signs of intelligence, in his own
way~-understandi%g others ana at times when he desired, making
himself understood. Both of the tribes that were so well known
had a simple language easily understood. An example of the
: ;cleverness of the Indian was related ia Cather's History of

(

T“tSt. Clair County "Years ago--just arter Ashville had been

::founded, probably{in the twenties, ‘three Indian men were brought
.to Ashville-for gfial on a_cbargewp{qstealing*ﬂorses. This was
after the states of Alabama and Geo;gia had extended their
jurisdiction over both these tribes or nations so as to induce

them earlier to remove to the west. A great many Indians were .°

1. Mrs. Ab Crow, personal interview, April 7, 1951.
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tried at Ashville in those days. - These three Indians were
"ironed" or handcuffed at the Ashville blacxsmith shop, probably
at Bill Alman's. V%hile the irons were being made and put on

these Indians, one of them, a young brave, made motions or signs,
indicating that he wanted to write a letter to send back home

in North Alabama by the officers who had arrested and brought

him here. Thereupon someone brought him paper, a pen and ink,

and he wrote a letter in the Cherokee writteﬁ language, which

had been 1nvented by an Indian several years before."l

The Indians had intelligent leaders, two of whom visited

 Ashville frequently. They were Cherokee chiefs Ross and John

Ridge. Ridge came to Ashville often to aftend court in benzlf Sf
those of his people who fell ianto the hands of the laws. Ridge
was a large, stalwart, full-blooded Indian, of proud bearing.

He was educatedgjn the North. ' He married a white woman. It was
aot a strange sight in Ashville's streets in early days to see

an Indian; but to see one like Ridge, educated, and dressed in the
finest of broadcloth, which.he alviays wore when visiting Ashville,
. ﬁas a'sightito behold. Ridge was/killed by the Ross party after
‘Fﬁbeir renoéél to the’West.2

~ As stated before, the settlers came into_Ashville as peaceful

" souls who did not like to fight. However, they found themselves

faced with a war situation when the Indians finally became arcused.

1. Cather, op. cit.

2. Crow, Interview, op. cit.
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They held a big council at Littafuchee, Creek Town outside of
Ashville that was destfoyed by Colonel Dyer in November, 1813.1
Tecumseh, who already was weging his war with the Whites in the
South, heard of the trouble in this section, and helped to incite
the Creeks‘and Cherokees both to commence a fierce war of exter-
mination against the white man.2

It was then the Indian Var whoop was heard in all its direful
reality in the forests about Ashville and throughout Saint Clair.
The Indians would have a war dance at which they would put on

red war paint, thus attaining for themselves the name of "Red-

Sticks." -

, As,hisWbasemofmnperationsmagainstwthewCrﬁeks,mGeneral ﬁacksonV
built Fort Strother at Ten Islands, on the Coosa River about'eight
miles from Ashville.3 Jackson detailed a company of soldiers to
remdve the Indians from Upper Cataula and Lower Cataula, the old
villages outside of Ashville. Those from Lower Cataula were
settled at and around a place known as the "Fife-town'" of Creek
Indians, which was on the road from Talladega to Jacksonville.u

Therlést repo;t concerning the Indian was about 1825, after

Ashville‘ﬁéd become a flourisbing town. One of the high chiefs

*fjor the Creeks, McIntosh, was about to negotiate a treaty for the

, reg?éél_of\phe‘fﬁdians to the VWest, when he was killed by a com-

pahi of "red-sticks." Great numbers of these men became. hostile

1. John Inzer Freeman, St. Clair County News, August 7, 191l.
2. Cather, op. cit.

3. Clipping File, Department of Archives and History, Mont-
: gomery.

4. Cather, op. cit.
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and the Talladega tribe fled to Ashville for protection and
remained for quite é while. They accomplished the feat of
persuading Colonel John Massey to let tﬁem encamp at the big
spring on hié property. Massey, then sheriff of the county,
under public authority of some kind, had these Indians fed and
cared for until the trouble quieted down.l

Perhaps you wopder where the people came from who stirred
up all the trouble.ﬁith ﬁhe Indians. The people settling'around
Ashville apparently came from varied places.

Some of the first settléfs came from East Teﬁnessee in 1815.2
Settlers came from Madison County in 1816 and traveled down an old
Indian trail that led from Ditto's Landing to Mud Town on the
'“Cahabe;~whilewEast“Tennesseanswcamemdownfinmflatwboatsﬁwlanded'at’ :
Gunter's Landing, both groups having Settlers who came to Ashville;
Georgilans and Carolinians reached the Cfeek Cession on the Coosa
by crossing the Chattahoochie at the upper Shallow Ford, crossing
v1ill's Creek and skirting the east side of the mountains.o The
general opinion in Asﬁville is that the majority of settlers came
'r from the Carolinas and Georgia.

Thougn settlers came to this section as early as 1815, it was

t until 1818 that any real permanent settlement was made. A

'ifamily was on its way West with a group of people to find a new

',‘home and- there were several children in the group. It was by acci-

‘dent that this family stayed in Ashville as one of the children

fell from a wagon and fractured his skull. The child's father,

1. Cather, op. cit.

2. W. J. Beles, "This Date in Alabama History," Birmingham
News-Age Herald, April 27, 1941.

3. Clipping File, op. clt.
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John Ashe, found that the Indians were friendly and he approved
of the gocd water supply of several springs and made his home
there. Therefore, he decided to stay on by the big spring. This
he did, establishiﬁg a plantation after he had homesteaded some
land. His plantation was just outside of Ashville (the Rdwan
farm today). This settler who did so much to fix the permanency
of the community served Ashville and his district very well. He
was a state senator and took a big part in both local and state
affairs.l The town bears his name, although in recent years it
has been shortened to Ashville, leaving out the e in Ashe.

At the second session of the General Assembly of Alabama

-Territory-was-approved-the-forming-of-St. Glair County..-Section - - . -

h of the act was for the purpose of establishing courts to be

held at the house of Alexander Brown.2 Upper Cataula was to be
the temporary county seat, a spot known as the Capeheart place,
four miles from?Ashville. The first court was designated to be
held in a log trading post, nome of Brown, built out of timbers

__hewn from the forest, and only the distance of a street's width

hgiaway from the present courthouse.

The first provisioﬁs in the acts respecting public buildings
i;?f§ﬁnd when Degembervé, 1818, the county court is authorized to
‘levjjéﬂpgx;?or the purpose of erecting a temégrary jail in said
county."'iﬁ'182l a legislative act appointed a committee to
superintend the bullding of a courthouse and a jail, at the

county seat to be elected.3 John Ashe, John Massey, John

l. Miriam B. Richardson, St. Clair's Personalities, Clipring
File.

2. Acts of Alabama Territory, 1818, Second Session, p. 22-3.

3. Acts of Alabama, 1821, pp. 38-42.
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Cunningham, Joel Chandler and George Shortwell were appointed to
the committee. Log buildings were erected and used for several
years. All of the buildings from the very beginaing must have
- been well preserved. Certainly the records were. The marriage
license book shows the first marriage license as issued to "Thomas
Stone to Joanna Suith: June 6, 1819."1 There must have been scme
certificates issued prior but the above is tne first recorced.

The county court held regular sessions until it was abolished
in 18&9—50. At a session of the superior court, September term,
1819, the courthouse of St. Clair County, H. Y. Lebb, judge of

the superior court of law and equity for the Alsbama Territory,

~presided and the following —jurors were-—-sworn:-—John-Ash; -John
Crump, Henry Bose, Viilliam Hill, James Martin, David Brown, Johnt
Dill, Benjamin Low, John Greeﬁwood, Thomas Thrasher, John McCollum,
and Viilllam Watson. Jesse Roberts was clerk, David Conner, sheriff
.Eand John Bush, géphty. In the first case tried Thomas A. Rogers.
was plaintiff's attorney and the suit was for false swearing.

f Polydon‘Naylor's name showsvabout this time as practicing in the

2

:f:A leglslative act of 1819 established three election pre-

S cincts in Salnt Clair, Joel Cnapaler's, 1lliam Guthrey's and

,j;Peter Ragsdale's. It was probably in the election of 1819 that
'the county seat was moved to Lower Cataula, the present 8ite of

Ashville.>

l. John Inzer Freeman, op. cit.

2. Frank Willis Barnett, "St. Clair County Seat Has
' Striking History" Birmingham News, May 6, 1928.

3. Ibid.
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In 1822 brick structures were built and used until the
present courthouse was erected in 18L). Littleton Yarbrough
was the builder and Campbell Jefferson the bricklayer. Manoah
Yarbrough, father of the buildef, came to Ashville in 1822 from
Roan County, North Carolina. Yarbrough kept a ledger while
building the courthouse which is in the possession of his descen-
dants in Ashville. It contains the number of slaves, bricks, etc.
that were used. The building was completed in 1828.1

On December 12, 1822, the following act was passed incor-
‘ porating the town of Ashville.

~ASHVILLE-

Pages 120-121_ Acts of Alabama, 1822

AN ACT

To incorporate the Town of Ashville, in the county of
Saint Clair.

Sec. 1. That the Town of 4Ashville in the county of
St. Clair, Be, ®mnd the same is hereby established and incor-
porated, including thirty acres, agreeable with the plan of
said town.

Sec. 2. Provides for the election of Councillors,

w-on the first YMonday in February of each year; said election

to be managed by the Justice of Peace and two Householders;
also provides for the election of a Town Intendent. The
sald Councillors shall be, and they are hereby, constituted
a_body corporate, by the name arnd style of the Intendent
and Council of the town of Ashville, and full corporate
powers granted to such body.
a Sec. 3. That the said Intendent and Council shall
possess the same powers, and be subject to the same restrictions
as are provided by law for the government of the Intendent and
Councilor of the town of HMontgomery, passed at Huntsville, the
‘third day of December 12, 1819.

Approved December 12, 1822.2

1. Crow, Interview, op. cit.
2. Acts of Alabama, 1822. Pp. 120-121
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In the years immédiately following the incorporation of
Ashville, things really began to boom. The town was fairly
successful until the war between the states. There are many
old settlers who played their role in the drama of this small
town and it would be hard to pay tribute to all.

Among those living in the town before the Civil wWar, I
shall 1ist only a few. The first merchants were William Slean,
James Rogan, Alemeth Byers, ‘ioses Dean, Tilman Dean, John I.
Thomason, Alfred Goode, Goodwin & ¥itchell, etc. ‘'he physicians
were Drs. Bothwell, Farrer, C. A. Crow, A. V. Nixon, Levi Lloyd,

~§William H. Beason and others;~ﬂﬁttornéys:~wPolydon~Naylof,'

 James Lewis, Oran M. Roberts, Rufus W. Cobb, Girard'Hewiﬁt;'
J. V. Inzer, and Andrew Pickens Earle. James Rogan had the first
gin, Armstrong & Cox had a water mill, as did A. B. Vandégrift.l
0f the men listed above several became outstanding iéaders
in their field.§ Oran . Roberts got his first education in the
common schools of Ashville, and studied law there, where for a
- . time he was admitted to the bar. He graduated from the University
;":of Alabama in 1836, one of the first graduates. Shortly after

5?{*18&0 he moved to Texas where he began to make his home known.

’;Hé¢5§came chief justice and in 1878, governor of the Lone Star
Vié##t9f;;jb‘ R )

vuﬁr.AQﬁ?ilie had another outstanding governcr, this one ‘twice
a governor of Alabama, Rufus W. Cobb. He was educated at Ash-

ville under Professors %asson and Drury, and was graduated from '

1. Barnett. op. cit.
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the University of Tennessee in 1850. He then read law in the

.office of John C. Thomasin, was admitted to the bar in 1845, and
practiced until 1867: In addition to serving the state as gov-
enor, he also held many other official positions.

Polydon Naylor apparently never became very famous on the
state level but he must have been one of Ashville's betcer
lawyers. His signature rests on many papers in the county
records as early as Septenber, 1819, when Alabama was still a
territory of the United Statee. One of these, as an example,

is an order to the shcriff concerning a man taking corn out of

a field. Naylor, as plaintlff's attorney, wrote a note of

mexplanation on the back of his order, telling the cause of
arrest of the defendant, to be brought before the Superior Court
of Law and Equity on the second Monday in September.i

If therse i; any reason for John Washington Inzer's receiving
such a long and loud evation, I have yet to find it. Yet, every'

source of material on Ashville always lists Inzer as Ashville's

ff'outstanding product, as Ashvillets "Grand 01d Man." He moved to

'Ashville and opened a 1aw office in 1856. He was several times

,probate judge. He represented Ashville in the constitutional

'convention in 1861. A Lleutenant-colonel in the Confederate

"e»&Army, Inzer made a very good record. After the war he was
’elected to the constitutional copventions of 1875 and 1890.
Leter he sefved in the legislature of the state.

The home of Inzer still stands today, strong and firm, as
the history of the people of Ashville stands. It was built for

Ma jor Moses Dean in 1851, and the bricks were burnt and laid ty
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Jefferson Campbell,.the master brickmaker and layer mentioned
- earlier. The walls extend from éround to roof and even the

dividing walls between the rooms are brick.l

Barnett states that "It was during the hell of reconstruction

that Inzer stood like a lion against lawlessness and disorder angd

by his moral and physical courage brought bad men to their senses
and rallied good men to helb,"2 Even before the Civil Var Inzer
fought for his and his county's beliefs. He was one of thirty-
nine at the secession convention to oppose secession.”

At the time of the secession convention the town's first.

newspaper, The St. Clair Diamond, was established. Thomas J.

‘Mangham vas editor.” It was printed only until 1861, when the
parer was suspended and everybody on it entered the Confederate

service. 1In 1863 The Ashville Vidette started up, but in 186l

it fell into the hands of General Rousseau, of the>French army,
who used the prfkting outfit for printing orders and blanks, and

.. got out at least one number of a paper.h The Democratic Farmer

was probably established during these turbulent times but there

is no definite'information. Also there is no information con-

cerning The Southern Alllance a populist paper at Asnville men-~

tioned in a letter to The §outnern Aegis from Bays D. Cather

A paper which has been in the hands of the Cather family until

recently 1s The Southern Aegis, established in 1873. It has been

.

1. General statements coacerning Inzer

2, Barnett. op. cit.

3. ‘David Heldt, "John Washington Inzer," Birmingham News.
No date. 4

L. Barnett. op. cit.
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bought by The Pell City News!' owner and is printed today in Pell

City. The building it used to be printed in is the same in
which the Vidette was published. The paper is a typical South-
ern weekly. . '

In the issue of January 6, 1875, the Aegis carried a local
advertisement of 4. é. Vandergrift and quite a few Gadsden,
Birmingham, and Chattanooga advertisers used its space. I should
think the reason for the out-of-town advertisers is the fact
that the circulation of Gadsden and Birmingham papers had not
reached a good part of tﬂe people in plactes such as Ashville.
Today there are literally no ads except for a few local advér-

tisers. An issue ‘of September 16 1903, carried 19 ads. July 1,

vw19u9 1ssue had only one ad, that of the Ashville Savings Bank.
Church notices in the January 6, 1875 A _Eﬂii showed the
following_ministers--Baptist, Jesse A. Celling; ﬁethodist, P. E.
Nichelson; Cumygrland Presbyterian, Thomas McClﬁney. Ministers

came to Ashville as early as 1820 and the denominations above

got pretty good foothold at that time.

Perhaps the oldest church house in Ashville today was

.

?ﬁgibﬁilt arbuhd 1880. It was once the home of the Presbyterians

_ 'but was purchased from them in 1918 by the Congregation of the
k;?fhchurch.of Christ | The congregation.of the Chyrch of Christ
e established in 1913.* . _

The First Methodist Church in Ashville was organized in
ihe late 1820's. The Ashville Baptist building was at first
used as a place of worship. In 185l Alemeth Byers gave pro-

perty for a church. It is on this same site that the present churc

stands.
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The Baptists built a litﬁle log churcn in 1853. Por many
years it‘wés the only church; all denominations used it. It
stood on Cemetery Hill just outside of Ashville until 1845,
when a new building wes erected. This served the congregation
until;1930 when the present building was erected.l

Just as the churches hnave played their part in Ashville
through the years, so have the schools. However, in this
field, there has been a scarcity of material. The schools
existed, but as to dates of establishment, enrollment, etc.,
little is known. The échools for many years have been built

on the same site as the present one. ¥Mrs. Eugene Embry'recalls

that the AéhViliéwAéadémylwﬁﬁicﬁwshé’attended bu”ned about 1909V

it is probable that this is the same academy whlch Rufus w. Cobb
attended, when the instructors were %Wwasson and Drury. The
schools were set up soon after settlers arrivéd and William C.
_Griffin and Joh% H. Caldwell were among the early teachers.

The old school house which sat on the site of the present

Baptist Chufch for years, finally passed from school to religious

4:J§ufposes'énd the school moved to the other side of the village.

iAshVille then had a large wooden building around the side of the
‘hill where today stands the present schoolhouse, built in 1922.
h A phase of the educational development which is not known

’toAthe general public is the growth of St. Clair College.3 The

1. . Mrs. Ab Crow, Ashville Church History, Southern Aegis
~ July 1, 1949. : .

2.1=Barnett, op. cit.

3. An act of the legislature in 1896 incorporated the
. College.

% Inaccurate reference to location and being destroyed by
fire.
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September 16, 1903 issue of the Southern Aegis announced the

opening of St. Clair College, oh Y.ednesday, September 16, with
the ﬁev. L. M. Stone D D, President, and his daughter, Edna,
instructor of music and elocution. The expenses were moderate
in regard to present prices of that day--good board at eight
dollars and a half, tuition from one dollar and a half. To the
announcement James A. Embry, Secretary of the Board of Trustees,
added: "The best of religious and moral influences prevail here.
Ashville is noted for intelligence, social refinement, moral

habits and hospitable homes. These are important for pupils

awéy ffb&whémé;“'”ii'iéwﬁhfgftﬁﬁétewthagﬂnothing is k@pwp“qf

the enrollment and the length of the 1ifeibf St. Clair College.
Since there has been no industrial development it is hard
to draw conclusions concerning the decline of the population, as
possibly being gffected by this lack of industrial development.
The activities engaged in by many of Ashville's settlers have
‘been reléféd in regérd to the first settlefs. ’
In 1910 there were three doctors, two livery stables, one
fdentist a heading and stave mill. The Ashville Savings Bank
;iihad acquired a capltal of 5325,000.1 Freemén in his article

'ﬂ_showedrthe need for a railroad. That need strll exists today.

l. PFreeman, op. cit. s
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Barnett listed the following industries in Ashville in
1922: M"The Ashville Cooperage Company, of which Sam High is
the presidéht, is a large coacern doing a big business and
emplojing a2 lot of labor. wp. Anelia Cox, ¥r. R. Abernathy
and John Yarbrough have water mills. The following have
sawmills: Heary Cash, George Test, R. R. Hodges, J. H. Frazier,
Alvin McEntyre, and L. R. Lonnigan. Sam Eigh operates a gin.
"There are ; number of progressive merchants and the new

brick block makes a fine showing among the old- timers whlch

‘have come down from before the CiVll har one attractlve thing ..

"about the square being the old-time law‘offices.

There are two banks and each one housed in an up-to-date
brick bullding. The Ashville Savings Bank is the older, it
having been estiylished in 1906, while the Farmers! and Mer-
chants' Bank was organized in 1920. The Ashville Savings Bank
has a capital of 12,500 and the Farners' and Merchants' a
capital of $15,000. Each bank has a deposit of about ;510,000."1
- Vhile the population of St. Clair has doubled since 1870,
_iqjthe tOWn or Ashville has abouu one- third of the porulation today
f  tbat it had 1n 1870. The following population_figures show

51the growth of the county and the decline of Ashville;2

1. ‘Barnett, op. cit.
2. Clipping File, op. cit.
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St. Clair Ashville
1820 l,166 1870 922
1870 9,369 1888 200

- 1900 19,L25 , 1905 362
1910 278

1916 650

1920 349

1930 369

1940 385

1950 Lol

T Following the Civil Wwar” Ashv1lle was getting to be a nice

_Vsize at least growing with the thes. However, following thc
years of reconstruction the population dropped to practically
nothing. In 1916 people had again seftled in Ashville but by
Yorld War I's end they had again vanished. An increase of about
20 persons ever;»ten years seems to be the recent trend in her
population.

At the turn of the century Ashville had its first bit of
i'¥ national recognition, and one of the few really stirring moments
',ioin its history. This came through the bravery of St. Clair's
rsheriff in defying a mob, when people had really begun to respect
“fiéflaW~ordqr;w,The sheriff, James I.. North, had to risk his own
life to save that of his prisoner's. A Negro, Jim Brown, had
assaulted a young wcmen near Springville in May, 1901, and had .
fled to South Carolina. Sheriff North went to Spartanburg,
identified the Negro, and returned with nis prisoner to Alstema,

where he~p1aced the Negro in Jefferson County Jail for safe
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keeping. On August, 1901, he was tried and Sentenced to be
hanged on September 20.

The feeling against Brown was intense and a great many people
were In Ashville on the day of the trial. After sentence had
been passed the crowd became aroused and riot occurred, the mob
attempting to take the prisoner from the sheriff. Shooting
followed and two men were shot, VWalter and Arthur Blankenship.
V.alter died that night. After the shooting the Negro was quickly
taken to Bifmingham to remain until the day of execution.?!

Among the papers of James L. Worth are létters fron Governor

'“Jelxs assurlng hln that he is g01ng to be protected and upheld

in the stand he took in protecting his prisoner. He gave North
full authority to carry out any pléns for the execution which he
felt necessary. One hundred men ffom the Birmingham Battery went
to Ashville th%Fmorning of execution. A special train carried
the prisoner and all the military guards to Ashville.

The execufion of Jim Brown wéé the first in St. Clair County
since 1878 when John Jackson, a Negro, was executed by Deputy
géhériff AbnerACrow;JFCrow was in charge of the execution of Jim
iBrown as North stayed in Blrmingham that day, not wanting to
ex01ta any ill feelings. _
f‘%ffA warrant was issued Tfor Sheriff North on account of the
killing of halter Blankenship on the day of the Brown trial.
This remarkable criminal trial was over by October 16, 1901.

The Dallas News on that day stated, "It was remarkable that

Sheriff Horth is one of the first officers ia all the South

1. Mrs. J. L. North, personal interview, April 10, 1951.
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who braved a mob's vengeance and went to the extent of firing
upoh men who were attempting to commit murder."l The trial

ended with the verdict of not guilty.

The New York Times on August 2L, 1901, paid tribute to

North: "Sheriff Worth of St. Clair, has done more for the good
repute of his state than any other Alabamian ve have heard of
for some time."2 This typical praise given to the Sheriff df
St. Clair County and thus putting Ashville in the news for a
period of fime.

Ashville again took the spotlight in 1923--but for a more

grand and glorious occasion. On April 265”1923,htﬁe"sociaiites

of Ashville combinéa three”occééionsmiﬁto'one--hd&é-comiﬁg,
memorial day, and their centeniai. People came back to Alabama
from all over the United States go take part in these festivities.
On this dagya monument was unvelled in honor of the Con-

federate soldier. The inscription at the base of the life-like
statue of a Confederate soldier féads: |

C. S. A,

1861-1865

To the honor of St. Clair County

Confederate Soldiers

Erected by their Descendantsy

Through Ashville Chapter
U. -D. C’
1923 .

l. Papers of James L. North

2.  1Ibid
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Ashville is one of the few Alabama towns more than one
hundred years old ancd able to have a Centennial celebration.
O0f this fact, they were very proud. They were also proud to
show the progress of the town in one hundred years: Fost of this
I believe was natural development and not a town's .pushing to
go forward. People in Ashville are still proud of the town,
yet none of them attempt to help the town set any astounding
record of progress. They just go along at a very average rate
of progress. They are content with the typical small Southern

town that Ashville is and always will be..
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ODENVILLE,ALABAMA

Odenville is a small rural town situated in Bever
Valley in St, Cilair County, bever valley is a fertile
valley in the foot hill country. 'The main crops are corn
and cotton, There are also quite a number of dairy farms
in the area, Most of the large timber in the surrounding
hiiis has been cut, Only young timber remains, There
are several small lakes, and numerous springs which,
together with wells, furnish the water supply of the

valley.

Odenville is 1ocated in the center of the county, and
the courthouse towns, Ashville and Pell City, 1ie over the
mountains on each side, The distance to Pell City is
about thirteen miiles, to Ashvirle;—about fourteen miles,
Birmingham, the nearest city, is twenty eight miles away.
The ares of Odenvilie is about one and three fourths square
miies, and the population is five hundred (1950 census).
This, however, does not incilude the many surrounding farms
which are considered a part of the community.

- There is no ‘indus try-o f'anykind«-in'ﬂgdenvj-l 1€ The. . ..

people who 1ive here work in neighboring towns and cities.

People from surrounding mining towns buy goods at
Odenville stores, .The people of Odenville buy groceries
and small items at home, but must go to one of the small
neighboring towns or to Birmingham to buy clothing and 8o
forth,

Udenviille's history is a rather interesting one. The
first settiers came to Odenville about 1800, Among these
early settlers was the Oden family, for whom the town was
nemed. About 1900 it began to grow rapidly, and in 1908
the county high school was built at Odenville. In 1909 the
town was incorporated, and was, for about thirty years, a
fiourishing town, its indusfries inciuded a heading mill,
an 0il mill, @ cotton milil, and a lumber mill.

Lts deciline began with a feud between two influential
men, which caused the towvn to spiit into two opposing
factions, Shortly afterwards two of the mills burned, the
bank became insolvent, and several large businesses became
bankrupt, Later, ‘when the remaining timber supply had been
exhausted, the 1ast industry colilapsed and the town became
what it is today._virtually a ghost town,
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The peopile are almost all native__born, Protestant,
and of Northern Furopean ancestry, There are no foreign__
born families, only two Catholic famiilies, and one Negro
family. The Catholic families have 1ived here for only a
few years., - ‘

There are no "good" residential sections or slum
areas such as are found in larger towns., Incomes vary, of
course, but the variation is not so great as in large
cities, 7/Most of the men are skilled laborers, farmers, or
semi__professional workers, The average annual income is
probably between 3,000 and $3, 500, ’

Relatively few women work outside 'the home, and chiidren
do not work except that they may do small jobs such as mow._
ing 1awns at home or for neighbors,

Much of the social 1ife of the town is centered around
the churches and the schooil. There are four churches__
a Baptist churech, a Methodist clurch, and two Presbyterian

'~churches"~Of~theseywthe~ﬁaptist~church¢hasmthewlargestm“,mwwwl

number of members, There are few people who are not members
of one of these churches, and social grouping is based to
some extent on church membership, I do not mean to impiy,
however, that one group is considered higher socially than
ano ther,

Although the young people also have their church
groups, more¥of their activities are centered around the
school, They have, of course, school ball teams and cilubs
of various types, ‘These, along with occasional dances,
plays, etc,, make up most of their social activities,

As a rule, both men and women take an interest in
politics and civic affairs in general, The Civic Ciub and
Parent__ Teacher Association are active in the communi ty and
have completed several projects, one of which was the
building of a school lunch room,

In other than church and civie affairs, the men and
women tend to seperate into different groups for their
social activities, The men have their Masons, Oddfellows,
“oodmen, and American Legion organizations, and many of
them hunt or fish in their ieisure time. The women havs
their various ciub mee tings at which they exchange ideas
about gardening, sewing, interior decoration, and the 1ike,
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Only part of the families hsve television sets, and one
family often goes to a neighbor's house to watch television
programs. At social gatherings where there are both men
and women, they usually separate into different groups--
the men to discuss theilr work, the women to talk about
their children and homes.

It 1s suprising that Odenville has not made more
progress In recent years., It has a very good location-- the
center of St. Clair County. (Two important highways run
through 1t and it is surrounded by comparatively productive
farms. (It's lack of industry may be attributed in part to
the reluctance of land owners to sell property to industrial
concerns. However, the fact remains that the town has not
only failed to grow with the passing years, it has actually
decreased considerably in size and importance.

The social life, and even the attitudes of a people
are determined by the place in which they live. Since
Odenville 1is such a small town the social actlvities of the
people are, of course, more limited than those of people

- living in cities. But, 1f Odenville has the limitations of =~~~

a small country town, it also has its advantages. Like most
small towns, 1t is a very friendly place. People are
interested in their mneighbors, and are eager to help them
during illness or other misfortunes.

The environmental and social characteristics of
Odenville, as of any town or city, are very closely related.
The location of a town plays the most important role in
making it what it is soclally and industrially.



86
HISTORY OF CROPWELL
By Charles E. Keel
April 28, 1953
Cropwell dates back to 1834, probably founded in the early thirties.
Accordi;xg to the old deeds and records, Cropwell postoffice was established in
1837. I don't know the exact date, but Mr. Pat Roberson has a letter that came
through the post office in 1837. The date is stamped on the envelope.
The early white settlers moved in the Cropwell area as the Indians moved
out. The early white settlers came from Georgia and South Carolina. Most of the
early white settlers were Scotch-Irish and Welsh.

The first post master of Cropwell was J. D. Bennett.

Cropwell was -first located at Roberéon's Ferry on the Coosa River, which

N ﬁ‘é{s"Ié;t‘éfﬁkiﬂﬁwﬂhwéérTi‘hss{"'émF‘erry. Cropwell was also called Coosa and then later
called Diana. On the old :'deeds and records, Cropwell was listed as "Crosswell,”
which was a misprint; thé double "s" being a script for a "p."

The first Masonic Lé)dge in St. Clair County was organized in Cropwell.

Before the Civﬁ War, one of the fiqxv‘st and best trading posts was
established at Cropwell. William T. Smith founded this trading post in Cropwell,
having a good line of goods such as hardware, groceries, and medicines.

In 1861 Company F of the Tenth Alabama Infantry Regiment, the Wilcox
Brigade was organized iﬁ Cropwell. Company F was engaged in the following
battles during the Civil War: Dansville, York Town, Williamsburg, Sandy Pines,
Harper's Ferry, Sharpberg, Fredericksberg, Chancellorsville, Salem Church,
Gettysburg. Those are the major battles that Company F was engaged in. The
Cropwell boys were in the battle of Harpers Ferry. General (Stone Wall) Jackson

taken 5,000 men and left General Lee's forces in Maryland and captured Harper's

Ferry and a garrison of 10,000 Yankees.
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One of the outstanding men of Cropwell that was in the Confederate Army
was William T. Smith. He was born June 4, 1844, at Petersburg, Virginia. When
he was five years of age, he came to st. Clair County along with his parents.
He received a common education at Cropwell School.

When the War between the States broke out, he had just established a
mercantile business at Cropwell, having bought most of his goods on the credit.
Smith, believing it was his duty to serve his country in such a conflict, left his
business with his clerk and enlisted in Company F, Tenth Alabama Infantry
Regiment. (Another outstanding citizen of Cropwell was J. D. Truss. He also
enlisted in Company F, 10th Ala. Inf. Reg., accepting the rank of Captain of

Company F.) . At the end of the war, Smith received many promotions, his rank

"was Col. of the 10th Ala.

When Smith returned from the Army, his business had dwindled to nothing,
but with fortitude andi determination of the men who had served the Confederate
States of America (C. S of A.) through the War, he reopened his business, and
in a short time added?farm‘ing and éwéaw’rrrnﬂ'l fo his operations. In all these he
was successful.

In 1871, Smith moved to Wilsonville where he established a lumber business.

William T. Smith was elected to the State Legislature from Shelby County
in the sessions of 1886-88. He was a Baptist, Mason and a Democrat.

John W. Jones started a mercantile business at Cropwell in 1841. Jones Fall
Roberson and Pat Roberson Grandfather, and the business is still operated under
the name of J. Fall Roberson & Sons.

Jones Fall Roberson is a descendant of one of the earliest Southern
families. J. Fall Roberson has devoted his entire business career to activities in

a most successful merchandise business, and has served in the Alabama House of
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Representatives. While J. Fall Roberson was serving the State Legislature, he
was a delegate to nominate Underwood for President of the United States in 1924.
He was born December 21, 1876, at Cropwell, son of James Russel Roberson and
Addie Jones Roberson. Pat Roberson is president of the Union State Bank,
located at Pell City, Alabama.

Some of the pioneer families of Cropwell were Coleman, Collins, Roberson,
Truss, Buchanan, Walker, Alexander, Turner, Hardwick, Braden, Murchison,
Willingham, and Roland.

Cropwell citizens were the first to vote for the three mill tax used in the
public schools. Out of this tax revenue, the people of Cropwell built the School

we are-now using. At that time Mr. Roy Gibsoh~wavé'.‘theﬂprincipalvof Cropwell

the present site, and under his successful leadership, Cropwell probably had the
best organized and well-disciplined school. He later became Superintendent of
St. Clair County Sé'hools. Mr. Gibson served the schools well and has worked
toward having better ichools and has provided the schools with good teachers
and equipment.

Cropwell now has three general merchandise stores in which the Roberson's
store is the most successful. Fall Roberson also owns a cotton gin and a cotton
warehouse and is a dealer in fertilizer.

Cropwell is a small village having three stores, a grist mill and a cotton
gin. Cropwell has a Baptist church. In 1901 Cropwell had a drug store, but now
the building is being used for the post office. For the past few years and at
the present time, Amanda Funderburg is the post master.

There are natural resources in Cropwell. Limestone, sandstone and shale

can be found in the area. Cropwell itself is located in dolomite and boulders of
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(These notes were on the reverse of the title page.)
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Iron ore is also found in the area.

CROPWELL NOTES

1. The first Masonic Lodge in St. Clair County was a Cropwell.
2. The first trading post in St. Clair County was at Cropwell before 1865.
3. William T. Smith came to St. Clair County in 1849 with his parents. Smith

was a successful businessman at Cropwell when the war came on.
Co. F. 5th [sic] Ala. Infantry Regiment.

end of the war. He served in Ala. Legislature 1886-88.

4. _Natural resources

" limestone T

shé.le

sand

iroﬁ ore
5. Pioneer fami.liésgf
Coleman
Collins
Roberson
Truss

Buchanan

Walker

(This was typed from a handwritten manuscript by Charles E. Keel.

He enlisted in

Smith was promoted to Colonel by the

Turner
Hardwick
Willingham
Braden
Murchison

Roland

The

copy was among the papers of Mrs. D. J. Bartlett, a teacher for many years at

Odenville.)
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WINNATASKA

In 1918, the Birmingham Sunday School Association purchased 120 acres of
land on Kelley's Creek in St. Clair County, for conducting a summer camp for
Sunday School boys and girls of the Birmingham area. Mrs. Elwyn Ballard gave
the land an old Indian name, Winnataska.

Camp Winnataska was opened, the same year it was acquired, by Miss Myra
Batchelder with the assistance of Harry Denman, a Methodist Young Peoples’
worker.

The first campers used tents. In 1920, four campers' huts, a director's

“hut, a mess hall and a recreational building were constructed. In 1924, all

”b‘ui’_lvdirﬂlgs w1ththeexcepnon of the recreatmnal hall were rebuilt. Frox;xv ;.ime to
time, more ':land has been acquired until now Camp ?Winnataska embraces 1220
acres. Dufing the last decade and a half, the camp has trained and used over
thirty-five hundred leaders and has served over thirty thousand campers.

Kelley's Creek, a% beautiful mountain stream, meanders its way through the
property anfd is open to boats for two and one-half miles. A survey of the creek
by the State Department of Health shows the stream to be free of any sewage
contaminatiqn.

Thirty-four buildings house the campers. These include shower houses,
commodious huts, dining hall and two large recreational halls.

Camp Winnataska has been a pioneer in the field of camping. Memorial
gifts and good management has brought the camp into prominence as an
outstanding recreational retreat comparable to the finest in the South.

(This was a typescript also among Mrs. D. J. Bartlett's papers. There is no

author listed on the paper.)
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70, 72, 86

Civil War-Hardships 31

Clark 13

Clayton 21, 26

Clements 5

Clinkscales 35

- Cloth making 32 :

Coal . 39
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Crying Snake 3

Cumberland Presbyterian 57, 73
Cumming 59

Cummings 54, 57

Cunningham 5, 14, 68

Curry 9, 15

Davis 25, 29, 38, 40, 42, 59
De Soto 61, 62

Dean 70, 71
DeBardeleben 2, 51
Deerman 12, 14, 15
Deerman's Chapel 14
Democrat Farmer 72
Denman 90

Dill 68

Dillon 9

Ditto's Landing 66
Dragging Canoe 3
Drake .29, 30, 37, 43,.48_
Drake's Mill 34, 37, 41, 42

Coal City 2

Cobb 5, 18, 70, 74

Cobb's Mill 14, 15, 17

Coker 40

Coleman 88

Collins 7, 8, 29, 30, 39, 88
Collins Bend 29

Commer 58 : &
Company F 86

Confederate Monument 79
Conner 4, 68

Continential Gin 34
Contryman 20

Cook Springs 2, 37, 60
Cooking 33

Coosa Valley 7

Coosa Valley Baptist 39
Coosa Valley High School 38
Corbett 48

Cosper 29, 35, 38, 40, 41, 43
Cotton 34

Countryman 12, 15

Coursen 52

Cox 19, 20, 60, 70, 76
Crawford's Cove Methodist 26
Creek Indians 3, 11, 62
Cropwell 7, 38, 44, 88
Cropwell Post Office 86
Cropwell School 87, 88
Crow 10, 63, 64, 69, 70, 74, 78, 82
Crump 17, 21, 22, 26, 68

Drury 70
Dunlap 35
Dupey 60
Dyer 3, 65

Earle 70

Eason 29, 40

Easonville - 30

Easonville Academy 38
Easonville--Churches 39
Easonville Cash Store 42
Easonville High School 38
Easonville Homes 32
Easonville Junior High School 49
Easonville Merchantile 42
Easonville Methodist 39
Easonville Post Office 40
Easonville-~Schools 37
Eat-And-Camp 30
Ebenezer 46

Eden 39

Edmonson 17

Elliot 42

Elliott 2

Ellis 18, 23, 55

Elyton 8

\Embry 74, 15, 82

Emerson 28
Episcopal Church 8
Etheridge 40
Eufaula 11



Eversole 41
Ewen 35

Farrer 70
Fidelity Church 13
Fife-town 65
Flatboats 31

Food preservation 36
Foods 33, 35, 36
Foreman 52
Forman 19, 59
Fort Jackson 3, 11
Fort Strother 65
Fountaine 29
Fowler 59, 60
Fraim 35, 37, 42
Frazier 76

Free 15, 23, 24, 28
Free Mill 16

. Freeman 26, 65, 68, 75, 81, 82

Friendship School 56
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Gunter's Landing 66
Guthrey 4, 68

Hagin 59

Hall 12, 13

Hallmark 26

Hammond 58
Hammonds 27

Hannon 47

Hardin 52-54, 59
Hardin's Shop 52
Hardwick 29, 37, 40, 88
Hardwicks 39

Hare 56

Harman 52

Harmon 29, 31, 34, 38, 39, 42
Harpersville 39, 49
Harris 20, 45

Harrison 38

___Hatton 44 _

Hawkins 45, 50

" Fulenwider 49
Fulmer 45, 50
Funderburg 38, 39, 43, 88

Gaddy 17
Gadsden 13, 27
Gains 20
Gallows Hill 62
Gamble 40, 41
Garden Club 28
Garnett 26
Garrett 4, 5
Garrison 51
Gaskey 27
George 59,40
Gholston 42
Gibson 24, 28, 88
Gilchrist 20
Gilliland 22
Glenn 54

Goode 70
Goodwin & Mitchell 70
Gramling 19, 21
Green 46

Greene 63
Greensport 3, 11
Greenwood 5, 68
Griffin 18, 20, 74
Grisson 39

Gunnels 58

Gunter 39

Hayes 29,739,748
Heldt 72
Helment 57
Henderson 41
Hendricks 48
Hewitt 70
High 76

Hill 5, 38, 43, 68

Hodges 52, 54, 59, 76, 82
Holcomb 43
Hollingsworth 28

Holt 82

Hopewell Methodist 45, 48
Hord 37

Houston 38

Howell 37

Howell Mill 37

Hoyle 38, 48

Hudgins 24, 27

Hughes 55

Hunsuckers 15

Hurst 57, 59

Hutchins 24

Indian Wars 15

Indians 7, 29, 48, 52, 61-66
Ingram 30, 42

Inzer 13, 49, 70-72, 81

Jackson 3, 12, 65
Jefferson 69



Jelks 78

Johns 14, 15, 26

Johnson 28, 30, 40

Jones 16, 23, 26, 39, 40, 57, 59,
87

Jourdan 12

Justice 48

Justice Court 40
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Macedonia Missionary Baptist 48
Maddox 29, 37-39, 42, 43, 53, 54
Mangham 72

Marcrum 58-60

Margaret 2, 51

Martin 55, 68

Masonic Lodge 8, 86, 89

Masons 19, 20, 84

Massey 5, 14, 66, 67

Lathrip's Railroad 44
Lawley's Chapel 39, 46
Lawrence - 20
Ledbetter 41 ?
Lee 22, 29, 31, 37, 41, 42, 44
LeFils 29, 37-39, 41, 42
LeFils & Son 42
Leonard 38, 43

Letaw 54

Lewis 70

Liberty 53

Lighting 32

Lions Club 28
Littafuchee 65
Littifutchee 3

Little 20, 26

Lloyd 70

Logan 12, 13

Lonnigan 76

Lovet 52

Lovett 9

Low 68

Low Gap Elementary 56
Lowell 52

Lute 17

Keel 86, 89 Maynor 58
Kelly 48 Mayor 60
Kelly's Creek 48, 90 McCain 46
Kendrick's Mill 44 McClain 13
Kerr 45, 50 McCluney 57, 73
Killian Mill 15 McCollum 68
Kirk 45 McConnell 21, 22
Knight 20 McEntyre 76
. McHugh 24
Lackey 49 McIntosh 65
Lambert 45, 50 _ McLellan 29, 38-41, 43
Laney 34, 40, 42 McWaters 26
"Langston 20 Medicines 41 T
Lassetter 27 Meek 9
LaTaste 29, 40 Melton 20
Lathrip 44 Methodist Episcopal 46
Lathrip & Hatton Lumber Co. 44 Miller 20, 40

Mitchell 28, 70

Mize 52-54, 57, 59, 60

Monroe 45

Moody 45, 47, 48, 50

Moody--Churches 48

Moody Junior High School 47

Moody Methodist 46

Moody School 47

Moody's Cross Rds. 45

Moody's Crossroads 50

Moody--Homes 50

Moody--Schools 50

Moore 11, 16, 17, 19, 22, 23, 25,
37, 45, 50, 52, 58

Morgan 42

Morrow 14, 27

Mt. Pisgah 37

Mt. Pisgah Baptist 39

Mt. Pisgah Missionary Baptist 48

Mud Town 66

Mullinax 18, 20, 26

Murchison 88

Nabors 20
Narkey's Chapel 39
Naylor 68, 70, 71



Nazerene Church 28
Neal 39, 40, 43
Nepseby 39

New London 37, 41, 44
Newton 9, 53, 59
Nichelson 73
Nickelson 22

Nixon 70

North 77-79, 82

O'Donnell 27

0dd Fellows 20, 84

Odenville 25, 46, 83

Odenville Presbyterian Church 57
Odenville-~-Churches 84
Odenville--Schools 53

Owens 15, 17, 20, 24, 27

Partlow 14, 15, 23
Payne 38
Pell City 42, 44, 49, 83, 88

“Pell City News 73
Philips 53

Poe 49

Politics 42, 47
Pope 15-17, 27
Pope & Free Lumber Co. 27
Pope's Chapel 46
- Poplar Grove .46
Portuguese 62
Pratt 51
Pritchard 17

£

Qualecuo 3
Qualls 19, 20, 23, 24, 26

Ragland 41, 60
Ragsdale 3, 68
Railroads 44

Raily 49

Ralls 22
Reconstruction 9, 30, 72
Rena 38

Renfroe 23, 44
Revolutionary War 12
Rich 20

Richardson 67, 82
Riddle 23, 27, 60, 83
Ridge 64

Riteh 37

Riverside 44
Roberson 37-39, 86-88
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Roberson's Ferry 86
Roberts 4, 5, 38, 43, 68, 70
Robertson 58, 59

Robinson 39, 41, 57

Rock Springs Baptist 45, 48
Rogan 70

Rogers 68

Roland 88

Roper 40, 42

Ross 64

Rousseau 72

Rowan 67

Russell 17, 20, 23, 26, 27

School Truck 25
Schools 8, 9
Scoggins 53, 59
Self 60

Shahan 15

_Shahan Mill 15
shank 17 '
——Shanks—19-—

Sharpton 27

shaw 17, 20, 24-26

Sherbitt 50

Shields 37

Shiloh Church 16

Shockley 59

Shortwell 5, 14, 68

Sibert 12, 13

Simpson 53, 57

Sims 48, 50

Slean 70

Sloat 20, 21

smith 12, 14, 15, 17, 20, 22, 23,
26, 27, 29, 39, 58, 60, 68, 86, 87

Soap making 32

Southern Aegis 72

Southern Alliance 72

Spanish 61

Sparks 52

Spiegel 56

Spradley 19, 38, 42, 43, 58

Springville 9, 77

Spruiell 45

st. Clair 4

st. Clair Co.-~-Churches 6

st. Clair College 74, 75

st. Clair County High School 53

st. Clair County News 53, 60

st. Clair Diamond 72

Stanley 6



Steadham 41

steed 52, 57, 60

Steed Georze Watson 60
Steele 14, 17, 20, 21
Steele Baptist 28
Steele Garage 27

Steele Methodist 22, 28
Steele P.T.A. 23
Stemley Bridge 41
Stephens 12, 13
Stevens 21

Still 43

Stone 29, 30, 37-40, 43, 68, 75
Stone'sMill 37

Stores 41

Stovall 19, 20, 57
Sturdivant 58

Swindall 12

Syrup 34
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Vandergrift 52, 59, 60, 70
Vandiver 30

Venable 20

Vincent 39, 41

Wadsworth 29, 30, 35, 37-40, 42,
44, 47

Waite 29, 30, 37-39, 41, 42, 44

Waite, Maddox & Co. 42

Walker 38, 88

Walnut Grove 53

Walnut Grove College 19

Ward 60

Ware 41

Warren 49

Wasson 70

Watson 42, 68,67

Webb 4, 68

West 76 |

Wetumpka 11, 34

Wheeler---18;-19,-2%

Taylor 45, 55, 57

Tecumseh 65

Ten Islands 3, 65

Tenth Alabama Infantry 86

Thomasin 71

Thomason 70

Thrasher 68

Timber 36 i

Tipton 35, 40

Toland 20, 23

Trading post 86, 89

Tramel 12, 13, 21

Trammel 26

Trammell 55

Trotter 17-19, 22

Truss 5, 87, 88

Truss's Ferry 86

Trussell 30

Trussville 44

Tucker 39, 59

Turner 10, 15, 16, 18, 23, 26, 27,
30, 31, 58, 88

Ug.n.c 179

Underwood 88

Union Army 15

Union State Bank 88
Union sympathies 30, 45

Valley Grove College 19
Vandegrift 73

Whisenant 14
Whisnant 26
White's Chapel 51
Whitfield 20
Whitmire 19
Whittle 44
Wilcox 17, 26
Wilcox Brigade 86
Williams 48, 55
Williamson 39, 60
Willingham 19, 29, 34, 37-39, 42,
43, 88
Wilson 24, 56
Wilson's Raiders 39
Wing 60
Winnataska 90
Wood 27, 59
Woodall 54
Woodham 47
Woodmen 84
Wooley 55
Wright 20

Yarbrough 6-8, 69, 76



